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Prepared in accordance with the Accrual Basis of Accounting under the

lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS)
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PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS

Certified Public Accountants (CPA)

Certified Public Accountants are skilled and competent

professional accountants, auditors, finance managers, tax

consultants and practitioners both in public and private

sectors.

Certified Secretaries (CS)

Certified Secretaries are expert practitioners in governance,

governance audits and compliance, corporate secretarial

practice, corporate law, consultancy and business management

and administration.

Certified lnformation Communication Technologists (CICT)

Certified lnformation Communication Technologists are

skilled and competent system developers and programmers,

network administrators, system engineers, ICT consultants

and practitioners.

Certified lnvestment and Financial Analysts (CIFA)

Certified lnvestment and Financial Analysts are experts in

fi nancial analysis, consultants and practitioners in investments

and securities, portfolio management, pensions management,

investment banking among other related areas.

Certified Credit Professionals (CCP)

Certified Credit Professionals are skilled and competent top

level managers, practitioners and consultants in the rapidly

developing field of credit management.

CPA

CS

CICT

€IFA

CCP
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Vision

Global leader in examination and certification of business professionals.
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I. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Legal framework . , - -.r_^ rr-+i.tnal TreAsurv bv the Government

kasneb was estabrished as a state corporation under the NationalTrea"ir#;;; 
iouerneo oy

of Kenva on 24th 
"';;fi;'ile 

establishment and operations ot l(al

il"i",il,*"s main Acts' among others:

(i) rhe Accountants Act' No 15 of 2008which repealed '"0 '-"-o-'3'"^""oJll:l!"J[!i[:j:j
( ) 

i#iiiJil:i,*'# $$ilr-lsr'":T:x"ffi lffi '#HH'i;' i""" rli p' o 
"

,,,, l*'ff;:iTfl,:"i:""':'iil;*^'J"n'u Act' cap ?'^o -1'.'nuu 
empowered and

recognised kasr; as tne examining #;i;t ffi'""'t'i"O Secretaries (CS) qualiflcation'

(iii) The lnvestment and Financial Analysts Act' No' 13 of 2015 empowe::: 
1H:::?S';Xi

kasneb "t 
tn"'li"i''rinini'ooov to' tite certified lnvestment and r-'

of ICPAK, ICPSK, ICIFA' ICMK as well as otherqualification

kasneb consults with the Councils

i[*"-n",*t in executing its mandate

(b) Board of directors

kasneb is governed

Treasury' The Boarcl ts

The members of the

bv a Board appointed bv the Cabin:t t:-":?:?rJ;tffi il::|;ffi:"rl*"Itil'" for'the general oolicy and strategtc ot

Board who served ou.,nJ't"n""'i;;; tist6d on pages 5 and 6

(c) PrinciPal activities

rhe principat activities of kasneb are the q*"]:'p-T,:J; :l::iTJ:t"": :f$fflunr' j':'"G,

:[$rtni;ff tp;i*iffi:'^"Jffi yt"':"H$:?;.#,'"":ffi 1,1,:::l?rr"}"'
promotion of its qualitlca

training institutions'

(d) Location and principal place of business

kasneb Towers
rfosoitaf Road, UPPer Hill

P.O.'Box 4'1362-00100

NAIROBI

Telephone: +254 020 4923000

Paai +254 020 2712915

emait, intoqXasneb or'ke

il"utit"t www'kasneb'or'ke
i"ceuoof : kasnebOfficial

r*itt"t, @kasnebOfficial

kasneb
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(f)

(e) Bankers

Barclays Bank of Kenya Ltd.rnterprise Road Branch
P.O. Box 18060_00500
NAIROBT

Equity Bank Ltd.
Community Branch
P.O. Box 8181_00100
NAIROBI

Co-operative Bank of Kenya Ltd.
!1oliBusiness Centre
r..u. tsox 48213_OO1OO
NAIROBI

Kenya post Office Savinposi Ba;; H;--o 
*.,ov,r rgs Bank (post Bank)

PO. Box 30311_00i00
NAIROBI

Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd.uapital Hill Branch
PO. Box 58233_00200
NAIROBI

UBA Bank Kenya Ltd
UpperhillBranci
PO. Box 34154_OO1OO
NAIROBI

lndependent auditors

National Bank of Kenya Ltd
Hill Plaza Branch
PO. Box 45219_OO1OO
NAIROBI

(g) Chief Executive Officer

Pius M. Nduatih
PO. Box 41362_00100
NAIROBI

(h) Principal tegat advisers

Board of Directors
Committees of the Board

t Chief Executive Officer
Directors/Heads of Divisionsv) Heads of Unit

vi) Deputy Directors

(i)

The Attorney-General
State Law Office
PO. Box 40112_OO1OO
NAIROBI

Kaplan & Strafton Advocates
vvllamson House, 4th Ngong AvenuePO. Box 40111_OO1OO
NAIROBI

Mbai Waweru & Associates

^r3yg1 
Hr]r Ouptex Aparrments,

ili 
"l^1]#.*iHrrr 

Road

NAIROBI

Fiduciary management

':?,:ifl!';"fJ,[111semen 
t is u n de r the

Auditor-General

33:il1'N;o1;l;HS"."-,
NAIROBI

(j) Fiduciary OversightArrangements

kasneb has in place an Audit and RiskCommittee of the Board which providesoversight with resoect to th" r;;;;;;;iof affairs of kasneb.

av kasneb
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(k) KeY management

The keY managem

2018 and who had

team

ent personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30 June

liiect nOuciary responsibility were:

and qualificationsSetbSnoSereK pvName

He is a horder of 
" "::T!::1,c#ffii:""H':"'illTt',#'3ttix1;Master of Buslness AdminEtral

CPS qualifications'
lceS (a sdnahed paetao enidrove saES p

Sn b ao enKn o vpke emhT e nv eoGndaa doBnnem semb pen VCSka tiStono norect poomd sSceuo presS nbmo sno SScde dnadan u SeS ateco atecop to rpoCEntehd eanUSne se b em naS aagate uSfoCO rpo cacah pdnacennaodoo snti som sop
nmeoeCVdd pnaowths

noecuexEehCdnaareCSed rynteasa poh patiUd antsN nuM ccoSu AP ehM o6nloceShcendaccoa8 n002auna ryJ4 I02ana UJ (ynoredreeH002o5oNctA

Pius M. Nduatih
Chief Executive

Officer

Mr James G. Nduatiwas appointed the Finance Directoron 1 July 2012'

He is a horder of a Bacheror of 
ffiI1"is:?J:",1ff:::il["t33i

Executive Masters' degree tn t

and CISA qualifications'

rh e key respo n s ib ir itie s 1f 
p'il,Lly; 

:XTT,XT! :lt"il ::,ffJtll:
the finince and .accountrng^H;; ;;;r',rncJ with international
strategic plan of kasneo i#i ';;ilie Ofncer on linance and

.tanOlrOs and advising the L

accounting matters
James G. Nduati

inance DirectorF

nuary 2019.

of a Bacheror of c9l':1":^rd:t;""i.I liffJtli
degree in Finance He ts ats<

xaminations Director on

ief Executive Officer wltn
EhedenaSa popanuN uMc saaSM hCnctaeh sednaSa popeH502UJ v

J4 amroeff cte

ffi

nneme smdn pannard soocn nna sea pl
S b dnno aSs c ereek ph atedvT redn poanostranmdadnanemoe e nd pS eno otiam n EVdxa pmfluSne ngebS nkaonacte paSe sthod nne otia naES ms xe ata oS neg oStranmdanecleffiSubaS h efof Cehvee S ndn da gadnaSnourtn Sn nn tra saereonota rSred tteacc ma ontadCCadnaSnotinamxaenooVEcuxE e

He is a holder

and a Masters'
qualification.

lsaac M. Niuguna

Examinations Director

!
l

H,,H,T,,jfJ.t,,3l[?:';Xffj& rtiil 
the Human capitar and

she is a horder of : B.1T:';1.":iil*:.9".t#,";"'"tt"ff:;
Admlnistration ana Com1111;*o""ioiO", 

of a Diploma in Human

Resource Management Sne I

ffi ::Hi,:?:L'ih:,,ii,i,"::1:i;Hllnd*:ii.J[#".3:ffi
;xil:: :iJi: "*,:3:lil"fl i,o,i, 

" " 
* 

"n"'"

Resource Management

MarylucY A Aiwang
Human CaPital anct

Administration
Director
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Dr. Christopher yegoh

DrChristopheryegon was appointedtheVice Chairman of the Boar
was reappointedas a memberoftheBoard effectiveTAugusti0l
1 September 2018. He is a nominee ot tne tvlinistry? eO-ucaiAccountants Act, No.15 of 200g.

d effective from 'l July 20.14 upto 30 Jun eZO,ll .He
nd appointed ViceChairman oflhe Board effective
ion in accordance with Section 15(iXb) of the

n|;"Xiifl:fffil?"'J#,"" Resource Educarion, Master of Business Administration and Bachetor of

Or.Yegon has vast experience in education and kaining having
to his current position of Deputy Director. Higher Eduiation, B

risen through the ranks in the Ministry of Education
tate deparlment of University Education

CPA Bernard M. Ndung,u

He is a holder of a Bachelor of commerce degree (Finance option) and a Master of Business Administration
:iP:x"rlt+,ilT 

a horder of the cPA qu"rin""tion 
",io "1j"ri!,. "i,n" rnstiture or certifieJ irori"i""ornt"n,"

CPA Bernard M Ndung,u was appointed to
reappointed lo lhe Board effective 7 August
Section 15('1Xa) of the Accountants Act. No

the Board effective fro
2017. He is a nominee
'15 of 2008.

m 
_1 

July 2014 up to 30 June 2017 and was
of the National Treasury in accordance with

PA fi
You

C dN nU U ah s des EX nen n npe a cen ud na a dn nCO Ss U n SE esCcy edn n nga ernatiCCOa o annU n Srm n udcl ns E rn S dns n nd 1Pa ces rhote U SeCoo e rS P Cp eH S UC nrre Dthe eeG n ctoe la Ac lyco ntiU S cervl aESng nd uO a S u nla c nitv Nthe a o an T e Sa U na cd ahry rm na Pof U b tc SAcc ectorOU n n Sta dn ard BSs rdoa PS BS

Or. Nyambura Koigi

91Nyr.!rl? Koigi was appointed to the Board eflective from 21 Janureappointed to the Board effective 7 August 2017. Sh; i; , ,"ri"." 
"faccordance with Section 15(.1Xc) of tt e iccountrnt. ait, l'r" r1 

"iiboOshe is a holder of a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics, Master of Business Administration degree in strategicManagement and a Doctorate in Bugllesg nori"rrtrrti"n. 6-r]J',rJ'ut.o 
"n 

Honorary Fettow oithe rnstitute ofCertified Public Secretaries of Kenya (tCpSK).

B:[18::ir'"ffi[:ilHil$"",ffi:X?;jiil%f,f" rever or Manasins Director, Kenya posr orrice savinss

ary 2011 up to 30 June 20.17 and was
the Federation of Kenya Employers in

Mr Benrodgers M. Miraih was aoooinled to lhe Board effective from 6 June 20.r 6 and was reappointed to theBoard effective 1 september 20 ib. He is a nominee 
"r 

in" 
-rr,4ri.t.v'ot 

pubric service. youth and Gender Affairsin accordance with section 1s(1 Xd) of th" A.d;L;ia ;;,'ij". i!,,,i ,ooe
He is a horder Master of Business Administration (HRM option) and Bacheror of Arts degree.
Mr Milaih has vast experience in the civil service in human resource mana.rpmpnr Lla ic ^,,,.^_r., ^_Director, Human Resource raanasement in the Ministry or pubrictfi [:?::ifl"T &",1"":ffi:l]:l 

servins as

Ms. Mary Njuya

Ms Mary Nruya was appointed to the Board
to the Board effeclive 7 August 20.t 7. She is
(e) of the Accountants Act. No. 15 of 2008.

effective from 1 Juty 2014 up to 30 June 20.17 and was reappointed
a nominee of lhe Altorney General in accordance with S."tili, isir I

She is a iolder of Bachelor of Laws degree. Ms Njuya has wide ,

Attorney ceneiart o;;;. ;;"";r;rrr"nry the Acting negistr", eene:;lerience 
in legal matters gained at the

FCS Joe Mbuthia
ce as a praclitioner tn comoanv

""Ji'J.i,gl;Ji";,,,il;;',?3;:::"J3liil,ilX,",lIii,i"#",j:'i":il:'lil;";gement Consultants.

cF S eo M i,4 bU th a Sa a ot ledn o hpp Boa ed flecti frve mo 2 aJ Un a 02 Ury 3to J0 nU 2ep 0 a7 ntea d aSn ted thoppo Boe a rd effect 7lve u U S 02 7 eH Ss na mo n oee the n sti tu ofe certi edft Pub IC Seco K reta ESen a nv h Se octi n of th5( e AccosX U n na ActtS No 5 of 2008

FCS Mbuthia has vast experien
strategic management, education
Principat Consultant, Chart Mana

FCS Catherine Musakati

to the- Board effective trcm 21 January 2011up to 30 June 20.17 and wasust 20'17. She is a nominee of the tnsiitute or iertineJ puurrc s""]"irn""('l)(g) of the Accountants Act, No. t5 of2OO8
she is a holder of a Bachelor of Laws degree, [4aster of Laws degree and the cps qualification. she also holdsa certificate in securities and rnvestments from ttre securrties an"J ir]vestments rnstitute, uK.
FCS Musakali has wide experience tn company secretarial or
worked-as Head of Legal Services in blue chip companies inju
Kenya Shell Ltd. She is the Founder of Dorion Associates anJ

actice, governance and legal consultancy having
ding UAP Provincial lnsurance Company Ltd. and
Oirector of Women on Boards Network.

FCS Cathenne Musakali was appointed
reappointed to the Board effective 7 Aug
of Kenya in accordance with Section .15

II. MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

I

Mr Benrters M. Milaih

He is a horder of a Bacheror of science degree in Business Management, post graduate Diproma in Management,
:ffi:tfi|'fi,i'#ma in Marketins M"';s;"rt r;l-Mr"iJ':.'"i 6r"ir"* eo.ini.t,"tiJr ni i. af,o a rroroer

accordance

t

kasneb
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FCPA Julius W. Mwatu was appointed to the Board

of tfie institute of Certified Public Accountants of Ke

accountant Act, No. 15 of 2008'

HeisaholderofaMasterse4inBusinessadministration.(Finance)andaBachelor,sdegreein
statistics (BSc). He is atso a nojoer-oiin, cpn, cs and the certified Financial Analyst qualifications'

He is a member of the ICPAK'

FCPAMwatuhasoverlTyears,experienceintheAccountingprofession'tleisthepaslc.hairman
of tCpAK. He is an Audit & Tai p"i^"i 

"i 
CpL & Associatei. He is also Board member of KCAU

Board of Trustees, pan-ntrican iJe'"iion ot n""o'ntants (PAFA) and the lnternational Federation

effective 1 September 2018 He is a nomlnee

nya in accordance with Section 15(1)(f) of the

Leadership Management ILM (U)'

CPAMakoriistheChiefExecutiveofficerof|CPAKandhasservedonseveralboardsinternationally
and locally and currentty serves ii it llnt".ut.nal Accounting Education standards Board (IAESB)

as a technical advisor

ffe

fi

8be 20e mee Se ctrdoa ptth Bn de ooa ppN nSec toShancordcn aKen na SccoU yauP b cifirt edCute ofe n tiSthm eenonS aeH
80025ctStan ntsucoAcoff)

eD reeemC moo sna adnn F anomd n straanrSteM Sade oS ha oeH SeHnuS aPR coned Ertcea aSOsnSoificaA audn CAP aC qde oha oa oSH ofethS eAL anoaAS ocSn roCona dteS Smnto Sfo ameth ne voem bma

CPA Edwin N Makori

Dr George O. Wakah was appointed to the Board effective from '1 July 2014 He is a nomrnee

Board of kasneb in ,c"ororn"e *i-tri sl"iitn r str xnl of the Accountants Act, No.15 of 2008'

HeisaholderofDoctorateinBusinessAdministration(Financeoption)'MasterofBusiness
Administration and Bacheror ot'ior"uiion tn"counting Major, Economics Minor) degree He is also

a holder of the CIFA qualification "nJl 
fr,"rn",. of thJlnstitute of Certified lnvestment and Financial

e exnerience oained as a lecturer in both public and private- universities He is

?J;;;;; i""o*ting Services, Parliamentary Service commission

Analysts(lclFA).

FA Dr Wakah has wid

currently the Director'

of the

FA Dr George O. Wakah

FCPA Benson Okundi was appointed to the Board effective.from 1 July 2014 up

"r'i 
*". r.u"ppointed to the Board effective 7 August 2017 His appointment was

1 September 2018 He was a nominee of the lnstitute of Certified Public Accoun

,"-""iJ"""" *i,n Section 15(1Xf) of the Accountants Act' No 15 of2008'

HeisaholderofExecutiveMasterofBusinessAdministrationdegreeandBachelorofCommerce
degree. He is atso a notoer ot itie-ipeluatification and a Fellow of the lnstitute of cPA.

FCPAokundihaswideexperienceinAccounting'andAuditing
P;;;w;th";""coopers lewci ne is currently a partner in PWC Kenva

to 30 June 2017
revoked effective
tants of Kenya ing

FCPA Benson Okundi

CPA Prof. Patrick Ngumi was appointed to the Board effective from 1 July 2014 up to

"'ni 
*". ,"rppointei to the Board effective 7 August 2017 His appointment was rev

1 September 2108. He *," a'nornin"" of the ln;titute of Certified Public Accountan

;;lJ;;;; *ith Section 1 5( 1 Xf) of the Accountants Act' No. 1 s of 2008

HeisaholderofPhDinEconomicsandPhDinBusinessAdministration,MasterofBusiness
Administration and Bacheror "iiir"",i"" 

degree. He is arso a horder of the cPA and cPS

qualifications.

CPA Prof. Ngumi has wide experience in flnance and accounting having served in various

oroanisations including H",ti;?i;;;;; 'no 
po"to'nr'.Recently he served as Director' Private

Se--ctor Enablers and competitiieness, National Economic and Sbcial council (NESC) and chief

30 June 201 7

oked effective
ts of Kenya in

CPA Prof. Patrick Ngumi

FCPA Julius W. Mwatu
of Accountants (IFAC).

11
WASMakoriEdwinCPA ofof

of1No.the1 15(
BachelorBusiness

Hetheis lnstituteAudit

)I

services gained at

Executive Officer, ICPAK'
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On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the annual report and the
financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

The Board is responsible for the strategic direction and oversight of
kasneb. During the year, the Board ensured that the mandate of kasneb
was efficiently and effectively executed as evidenced by the successful
administration of examinations in December 2017 and May 2018 both
within and outside the country, among other things.

Governance
The operations of kasneb are governed by the Accountants Act, No. 15 of 2008, the Certified
Public Secretaries Act. Cap. 534 of 1988 and the lnvestment and Financial Analysts Act, No. 13

of 2015. Under the provisions of the Accountants Act No.15 of 2008, the Board has authority
to establish committees it considers necessary for the efficient and effective execution of its
functions.

The Board comprises even (11)non-executive members appointed by the Cabinet Secretary for
The National Treasury in accordance with the provisions of Section 15(1) of the Accountants Act,
No. 15 of 2008. The members of the Board serve for a period of three (3) years. The term of the
previous Board expired on 30 June 2017. Consequently nine (9) members were appornted vide
Kenya Gazette Notice No.1'1 796 dated 20 November 2017 which was published on 1 December
20'1 7. Their appointment was effective from 7 Augusl2017 .

Thereafter, the Cabinet Secretary vide Gazette Notice No. 352 dated 18 January 2019 appointed
Dr. Nancy N. Muriuki, Mr. Benrodgers M. Milaih, FCPA Julius W. Mwatu, CPA Edwin N. Makori
and Dr. George O. Wakah as members of the Board effective 1 September 2018. ln the same
Gazette notice Dr. Nancy N. Muriuki and Dr. Christopher Yegon were appointed Chairman and
Vice Chairman of the Board respectively. The Cabinet Secretary further revoked the appointment
of CPA Prof. DDr. Patrick Ngumi and FCPA Benson Okundi effective '1 September 2018.

The members of the Board are provided with appropriate and timely information to enable them
discharge their responsibilities and maintain full and effective control over strategic, financial,
operational and compliance issues.

Corporate Strategic Plan (2017 -20221
The implementation of the fifth Corporate Strategic Plan (2017-2022) commenced on 1 July
20'1 8. The strategies are aligned to the national development agenda, sustainable development
goals (2015-2030) and Kenya Vision 2030 and paves way for new initiatives geared towards
transformation of kasneb. These initiatives include online delivery of examinations, use of digital
marketing platform, research and innovation, implementation of ISO Standards and increased
adoption of information communication technology.

The plan is anchored on four pillars namely; Quality professionals, Customer experience,
lnstitutional capacity and Financial sustainability.

kasneb Towers Phase ll Project
The construction of the kasneb Towers ll and extension of kasneb Towers I Project was at an
advanced stage of completion. The construction works will be completed during the financial year
2018t2019.

I

I

I

I

i

I

I

I

I

kasneb
III. CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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ISO Quality Management System and lnformation Security Management System
Kasneb continued to implement the ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System (a[/S). ln
addition during the year, kasneb commenced the process of certification under ISO/IES
27 00 1 :20 1 3 I nformation Secu rity [Vla na gement Systems.

Marketing and communication
ln line with the new professional brand which was launched on 3'1 March 2017, kasneb continued
to communicate and promote the new brand through various media channels.

The Huduma ServiceCentresin Mombasa, Kisumu, Kisii, Eldoret, Nakuru, Nyeriand Merucontinued
to provide devolved customer service in order to ensure superior and timely customer experience.
Two Huduma centres at Kibra and Makadara in Nairobiwere closed during theyeardue to lowtraffic.

Way fonivard
kasneb will continue to offer market driven quality examinations to empower professionals
globally. This will be achieved through continuous research and innovation, regular review of
examination syllabuses and increased investment in ICT for enhanced operational efficiency.
Greater emphasis will be placed on quality and speedy service delivery in order to guarantee
customers a superior experience in accordance with the new kasneb professional brand.

Appreciation
I wish to thank the students for their loyalty and confidence in the qualifications of kasneb and
their parents, guardians and sponsors for their sacrifice. I feel indebted to the members of the
Board for their foresight and the members of staff for their dedication and hard work during the
year. I wish to also thank the Government for appointing me Chairman of the Board and also
appointing other members to serye for a period of three years effective 1 September 2018. ln
addition, I acknowledge the Government support in providing a conducive environment to operate
in through the National Treasury.

DR. NANCY N. MURIUKI, PHD
CHAIRMAN
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3o
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austerity measures were put in place to mitigate the disruptions through elimination of wastages
and deferment of non-essential expenditure. The impact of these measures is expected to be
realised in the financial year 201812019.

The following are key highlights of the financial year.

Financial performance
The financial performance for the financial year 2017t2018 was lower than in the previous years
resulting into a deficit of Sh.60 million due to various reasons as explained under the management
discussion and analysis. Through prudent financial management the expenditure on operations
was significantly lower than the previous year. The opportunity cost on the construction of kasneb
Towers ll meant that there were less funds to invest and an additional asset to maintain while
awaiting occupation of the building. This also contributed to the lower financial performance in
the short term.

Administration of examinations
The professional and diploma examinations were successfully administered in November 2017
and May 2018. ln order to enhance customer satisfaction, we successfully released the results
for both professional and diploma examinations in the first half of the month of Janu ary 2017 and
July 2018 respectively to allow training institutions and candidates adequate time for tuition and
preparation for the next examination sitting.

Certificate in Accounting and Management Skills (CAMS)
During the year, we concluded the process of a mid{erm syllabuses reviewwhich had commenced
in the previous financial year. One of the major outcomes of this review was the introduction of
the Certificate in Accounting and Management Skills (CAMS) qualification. The new qualification
was advised by a comprehensive stakeholder engagement process which identified a critical
gap in lower level accounting and management skills for the micro, small and medium enterprise
sector, non-governmental organisations (NGOs) and both public and private sector entities. The
first CAMS examination were held in November 2018.

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system
Tendering for the ERP system and evaluation of the tenders commenced during the financial year
with support of the lnformation and Communication Technology Authority. The tendering process
was expected to be completed in the year Z0l\l20lg.

kasneb

IV. REPORT BY THE ACTING CHIEF EXEGUTIVE OFFTCER

The financial year 201712018 was challenging and a turning point
for kasneb. As we continued to implement new initiatives under
the fifth corporate strategic plan (2017-2022), a harsh political and
policy environment led to realization of a deficit after many years of
operation. The first half of the financial year was characterised with
major disruptions brought about by the 8 August 2017 general elections
and the repeat Presidential elections on 26 November 2017. This
was a period of great uncertainty running all the way until the famous
handshake in March 2018. This uncertainty compiled with the ongoing
education reforms especially in the area of KCSE examination led to
a significant decline in student numbers and hence revenue. Various
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lso/l Ec 27 001 :201 3 I nformation Secu rity Ma nagement System Gertif ication

During the year, kasneb commenced the process of ISO/IES 27001:2013 lnformation Security

lVlanagement Systems (ISMS) certification. This will be critical in managing and protecting

kasneb's valuable data and information assets for optimal resource management and smooth

operations.

lnternal culture change
To ensure success and sustainability of the kasneb Vision in the dynamic operating environment,

we increased the momentum of the internal culture change process which we started in the

previous financial year. The process was characterised by participatory sessions, group activities,

role play, sharing and disclosure and resolution sessions. The objective of the culture change is

to adopt enabling culture traits, discard negativity/disenabling behaviours, attitudes and beliefs

and thereby enhance peformance and productivity.

Kasneb Towers ll project
The construction of kasneb Towers ll continued during the year and was at advanced stages of

completion estimated at 96% as at 30 June 2018. Partial hand-over of kasneb Towers ll by the

Contractor to kasneb was undertaken on 22 February 2018. The facility was utilised for various

activites including prize award ceremony, stakeholders workshop, launch of the Certificate in

Accounting and tr/anagement Skills (CAMS) qualification, training workshops and marking of

tt/ay 20'1 8 examinations.

Service to the communitY
We engaged in various corporate social investment initiatives as outlined under the Economic

Social Governance statement of this report. The kasneb Foundation that is expected to offer loans

and bursaries to needy students who wish to pursue kasneb qualifications was operationalised

during the year.

I thank the members of the Board and staff for their commitment, dedication and support during

the year.

ISAAC M. NJUGUNA
AG. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFIGER

((r kasneb
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V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board of kasneb is responsible for the overarr management of kasneb. The Board compriseseleven non-executive members who are ,""orni"o," 
" 

in" cor"rn#n'r-"-no ,n" people of Kenyathrough the parent Ministry, The Nationaii;;;;;;. The members 
"iin"i"rro are committed toachieving the highest standards of good !or"rr"n"" ln this regard, inu ,#0"r" of the Board andmanagement have committed to work n'ones,v ano oitigenr/anJ n"r" or, in place appropriatepolicies and strategies to ensure compliance with the raw ano1n" r,iJn".t standards of bestpractice in good governance and business ethics..The m"ro"r" ##:'; accordance with thebroad prlnciples set out in the-Accoun,rr,, n"il fr,. rs of zooa, tn"-c"i,n"o public Secretariesof Kenva Act, cap 534 of 1988 

""J;"1;;;ir"", "ro 
Financiar Anarysts Act, No. 33 of 2015.

Members of the Board
The Board comprises the chairman, Vice-chairman and nine other members who are appointedby the cabinet secretary for tne ruation;;;;;ry for a term of three years. The chief Executiveofficer is an ex-officio member ottne aoaJine eoaro ,""t" 

"ii"'".lfour times a year, withadditionar meetings being herd on n""d GJ.. in" eor" n".i"i"glt'eo autnority for the day_
h1Xil#Tililll:"::" chief Executi;" offi;";who is arso *," s-"","t".v to the Board rhe

:;:lin[:::ix;il:lfl*f i]JH,iJi:ffi 
,:,il1Jffi1;rr]nli:,",:ffi 

fl :J
Committees of the Board
The Board has established the following four standing committees and one sub-committee toIflI ii:i:,i"1:,,15fl,:::3:;:m;tll* =il",,ilH::,:':: rlast rou,. times a year

The main responsibilities of the committees are as follows:

Examinations Committee
The principal responsibilities of the committee are deveropment of syilabuses which compry withinternational standards, oevetopmeni;; ;;il. for managem"ni or Jrrrirations, receivingand considering examiners r:pgrts ano guroi;g1he rerease of resurts, advising the Board onmatters incidentar to good strategies roirJri"nirtrrtion of "rrri"riirrl and accreditation of[x:;? 

institutions offering tuition for tn" o*i,o"r,,ons of kasneb and promoting research and

Finance and Generat purposes Committee
The principar responsibirities of the corritt"Jrre deveroping and overseeing the imprementationof the finance stratesv, 

,l:rr" "";i; ;;;gv 
"no 

infoimation communication technorogystrategy. The committee is arso responsibre to,. iiu upprorar of the annuar procurement pran andannual budget and for ensuring prudent Rnrrti"i ,"nrgement.

Planning and Business Development CommitteeThe principat responsibitities of the C#;#.
corporate stratesic pran monitorins and ,6i;;;il","::""r'iliiflHJ,:xff'""J:H,:[ 

T il:and coordinating the oerformancei";;#;;;;cess. The committe-e is arso responsibre for
l"J,[;]"t'"' 

the marketing strategy, business iJvetopment poricy and corporate communication

)
kasneb
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were as shown below:

Examinations Committee
-hristopher Yegon (Chairman)

Nyambura Koigi
Catherine Musakali

Joe M. Mbuthia
Bernard M. Ndung'u

Benson Okundi
Mary NjuYa

Patrick Ngumi
Sharon J. Kisire
Yonah O. Okidia

Jonah K. AiYabei

Samuel M. Muriu

Planning and Business
DeveloPment Committee
Catherine Musakali
(Chairman)
Nyambura Koigi

Mary NjuYa

Joe M. Mbuthia
Benson O. Okundi

Audit and Risk Committee
Benson Okundi (Chairman)

ChristoPher Yegon

Catherine Musakali

Mary NjuYa

Bernard M. Ndungu

Examinations Technical
Sub-Commiftee
Patrick Ngumi (Chairman)

Joe M. Mbuthia
Sharon J. Kisire
Gillian W. Mwaniki
Yonah O. Okidia
Samuel M. Muriu

Jonah K. AiYabei

David M. Mwangi
John O. NYangweta

Dorcas M. Omukhulu

iliHl:iJ:iffi;lHlffis of the committee are to provide assurance to the Board and

managementon the aoequ'a"c-yoipro""orr". relating to riskmanagement'.control and governance'

reviewing and approvrng"iil'"lO'i "narter, 
anO internal audii annual work plans' reviewing

the internar and externai uroiitinoingr rno r""o.rn"ndations and proposing preventive and

corrective action as "pp;;;;L. 
The-committ"u-i, utro responsible for reviewing the systems

established to ensure 
"or"nJprOfi" 

flnancial .";;;;;-ind internal controls' The Head of

lnternal Audit and nisf is an ex-officio member of the Committee'

iffi?:ffi:;"1:"*'ffi'j,Hl-'#fr,*ii"l:_"r",*anent 
Sub-committee orthe Examinations

committee. tts principai [sponrll,itv is dealing with technical issues on examination matters

including syllabuses, """'rlli,"tion 
oitr"ining i"rtituiiont t"search and innovation as delegated

ir til i"rrr'"ations Committee from time to time'

il:il3::IflJi:-'i:ilff:ommittees and sub-committee durins the nnancia. vear 2017 t201I

Finance and General

Purposes Committee
Nyambura Koigi (Chairman)

ChristoPher Yegon

Bernard M. Ndung'u

Patrick Ngumi

Benrodgers M. Milaih

(
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Meetings held by the Board and committees (1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018)

Board/Gommittee Number of meetings held

Board

Examinations Committee (EC)

Finance and General Purposes Committee (FGPC)

Audit and Risk Committee (ARC)

Examinations Technical Sub-Committee (ETSC)

Summary of attendance in meetings
Committee meetings Total

meetings
EC FGPC PBDC ARC ETSC

Att. App. AttNA]\4E App. Att. App. Att. App Att. App. Att. App App. Att.

Christopher Yegon 44 52 3 3

1

2

2

'15 11

Nyambura Koigi 4553 3 2

2

14

't2

11

oJoe l\.4. l\4buthia 43
43

5

5

3 2

Catherine Musakali 2 2

2

2 1'l 128
Bernard M. Ndungo 43 5 3 3 1 147
lMary Njuya

Benson Okundi

45 3 2 2 11 15

15

'13

12
]-

3

2

3221 11
44 5 31 't 1 13 8

Benrodgers M. Milaih 44 5 3 o

5

7

1George O. Wakah N/A 51
Sharon J. Kisire N/A 52 6

6

3

5Yonah O Okidia N/A 54
Jonah K. Aiyabei N/A 54 1 1 6T-
Samuel M. Muriu N/A 54
David 1,.4. l,/wangi 11
John O. Nyangweta N/A 1'l
Dorcas M. Omukhulu

Gillian W. l\4waniki

11
't1N/A

KEY
App.
Att.

- Applicable
- Attended

Kasneb has also established a Kasneb Foundation under the Trustees (Perpetual Succession)
Act, Cap 164 to administer a loan fund and bursary fund to enable needy students to pursue the
qualifications of Kasneb. The Trustees of the Foundation comprise three (3) Board members, tvvo

(2) members of staff and two external persons.

13

kasneb

4

5

J

2

1

1

Planning and Business Development Committee (PBDC)

Board
meetings

1

11

Patrick Ngumi

N/A

Note: Applicable refers to the number of meetings which members were eligible to attend during the period.
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vr. EcoNoMrc socrAL GovERNANcE (ESG) STATEMENT

ln appreciation of the important role played by communities in which kasneb operates, a vibrant
Economic Social Governance (ESG) policy is being pursued. The policy takes into consideration
the need for sustainable practices and social governance values. This is in recognition of the vital
role played by the society in which the goals and aspirations of kasneb are centred. The pillars
of the ESG policy are:

Education and training
Health
Disaster Relief
Environment
Youth talent development
Voluntary community service

kasneb contributed a total of Sh.1 ,950,000 (shillings one million nine hundred and fifty thousand)
only towards economic social governance. ln addition, members of staff participated in various
ESG activities. The following were some of the key ESG activity engagements:

Educational activities
kasneb paid school fees for seven (7) orphaned and vulnerable students from Tunyai Childrens'
Centre, Tharaka Nithi for third term (2017) and first and second term (2018). The students are in
different secondary schools in Tharaka Nithi County. A donation for buying school uniforms for
the forty two (42) orphans of the Tunyai Childrens' Centre was also provided.

Various textbooks were donated to eleven (11)libraries namely; Wajir District Library, Munyu
Community Library-Nyeri, Kibera Branch-Nairobi, Bute Community Library-Wajir, Narok Branch,
Nyilima Community Library-Siaya, Dzitsoni Community Library-Kilifi, Silibwet Community Library-
Bomet, Gilgil Community Library- Nakuru, Timau Community Library-Meru, Ukwala Community
Library-Siaya, Wundanyi District Library - Taita Taveta

Humanitarian Activities
As part of celebrating its 48th Anniversary in July 2017 , kasneb donated foodstuffs to Port Reitz
School, lvlombasa, a special school for physically, mentally and socially handicapped children
and the only primary boarding school in lvlombasa County that offers education services to needy
handicapped children.

A donation was also made to Wells of Hope Centre for economic empowerment of the elderly
women of Kibagare Slums, Nairobi.

Voluntary community service
Members of staff participated in the Kenya Freedom from Hunger Walk. The aim of the walk
was ,o complement the government's efforts in the fight against hunger and malnutrition and its
causes among vulnerable communities.

Environmental activities
Members of staff participated in the Ndakaini Half [Vlarathon ten (10) kilometre corporate race
organised by UAP Old Mutual and Ndakaini Dam Environmental Conservation Association
(NDEKA).

kasneb
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VII. REPORT OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The members of the Board submit their report and audited financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 20'18 which show the state of affairs of kasneb.

1. PrincipalActivities

The principal activities of kasneb are the development of syllabuses, conduct of professional,
diploma and technician examinations and certification of candidates in accountancy, finance,
credit, governance and management, information technology and related disciplines, the
promotion of its qualifications nationally and internationally and the accreditation of relevant
training institutions.

2. Results

The results for the year are set out on pages 24 to 44

3. Members of the Board

The members of the Board of kasneb who served during the year and to the date of this
report are shown on pages 5 and 6.

4. Auditors

The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of the books of account of kasneb in
accordance with the provisions of Article 229 olthe Constitution of Kenya,2010 and Section
7 of the PublicAuditAct, No. 34 o'f 2015.

By order of the Board

ISAAC M. NJUGUNA
AG. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

kasneb
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SECTION A

Operational and Financial Performance
The financial year ended 30 June 2018 was challenging for the education sector in general and

higher learning institutions and professional examination bodies in particular. The performance

for the year was fair considering the difficult operating environment. The sector was hit by low

student enrolment which affected the financial performance of both public and private institutions

of higher learning and professional examination bodies including kasneb.

The capital and recurrent expenditure were however fully financed from internally generated

revenue. Funds invested in treasury bills and bonds were rolled over where possible while some

were utilised to meet some operational expenses due to the declining revenue collection. The

projected income from operations for the flnancial year ended 30 June 2018 was below the

targeted performance. This was mainly attributable to the following:

(a) The impact of placement of Diploma students in Technical Training lnstitutes by Kenya

Universities and Colleges Central Placement Service (KUCCPS) and subsequent funding

of diploma students through HELB loans. Students prefer to be placed by KUCCPS to the

Technical Training lnstitutes in order to benefit from the financial assistance.
(b) The impact of downward trend of student's performance in Kenya Certificate of Secondary

Education leading to all students with grade C+ and above being admitted to both public and

private universities. Students prefer to go to the universities and graduate in respective fields

before registering for professional qualifications offered by kasneb.
(c) The impact of the new requirement for students to report to universities in the same year

when The Kenya Certificate of Secondary Education results are released. Previously many

students used to take kasneb qualifications as they waited to join universities a year after

release of results.
(d) The impact of transition to the revised examinations syllabuses which were implemented

effective from 1 July 2015 including the phasing out of Technician examinations effective

from 1 January 2016.
(e) The introduction of the Diploma examinations whose minimum entry requirement was

KCSE mean grade of C- (C minus) compared to D+ (D plus) for the phased out Technician

exam inations.
(f) Competition from universities who also offered diploma courses to students with KCSE mean

grade of C- (C minus) who subsequently progressed to degree courses.

The impact of the negative income variance was however, mitigated by savings arising from

austerity measures undertaken in managing operating costs including but not limited to automation,

re-engineering of processes, wastage reduction and deferment of non-essential expenditure.

During the year, kasneb introduced the Certificate in Accounting and Management Skills (CAMS)

qualification following a comprehensive stakeholder engagement process which identified a

critical gap in lower level accounting and management skills for the micro, small and medium

enterprise sector, non-governmental organisations(NGO) and both public and private sectors.

The first examination will be held in November 20'18. This qualification is expected to contribute

to the growth of the revenue base of the organisation.

The development and subsequent launch of e-kasneb application on 31 March 2017 has greatly

assisted students in payment of fees online as well as access to services using mobile phones.

This service delivery innovation is expected to result in additional cost savings and enhanced,

effective and efficient service delivery.

kasneb

VIII. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Kasneb is in the process of implementing various strategies which were identified in the previous
financial year to address the numerous challenges and improve on the financial performance.
The strategies include but not limited to:

(i) Letting of office space in kasneb Towers ll.
(ii) Development of new income streams such as establishment of a research and innovation

centre.
(iii) Availing e-learning resources to students and examiners at a subsidised fee.
(iv) Adoption of digital marketing in line with the unique needs of the target market.
(v) lntroduction of computer based examinations which would allow students to book and

undertake the examinations online.
(vi) Promotion of examinations in foreign countries such as Rwanda, Burundi, Uganda, South

Sudan, Somalia and Cameroon.
(vii)Collaboration with Kenya Universities and Colleges Central Placement Service (KUCCPS) to

facilitate admission of students for kasneb examinations through KUCCPS.

SECTION B

Compliance with regulatory requirements
During the year ended 30 June 2018, kasneb complied with all the statutory and regulatory
req uirements.

SECTION C

Key projects and investment decisions the entity is planning/implementing kasneb Towers
Phase ll Project
The construction of kasneb Towers ll continued during the year and was at advanced stages
of completion estimated at 96% as at 30 June 2018. Partial hand-over of kasneb Towers ll by
the Contractor to kasneb was undertaken on 22 February 2018. The project, once complete
is expected to provide facilities for enhanced security, integrity and efficiency in examination
processes thus reducing operational costs. The project is also expected to generate some rental
income. The expenditure incurred in the construction works is financed from internally generated
funds.

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system
The process of sourcing for an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system commenced during
the year and was ongoing. The evaluation of the tenders was undertaken with support of the
lnformation and Communication TechnologyAuthority. The tendering process is expected to be
completed in the year 201812019.

SECTION D

Major risks facing the entity

Financial risk management
kasneb seeks to minimise its exposure to financial risk by investing only in secure Treasury
bills and bonds. There are no financial liabilities like loans and overdrafts other than suppliers
liabilities.

kasneb
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The members of the Board and management are responsible for preparing financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of kasneb as at the end of each financial year

and of the operating results for that year.

The members of the Board and management are also required to ensure that the Board keeps
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of
kasneb. The members and management are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Board.

The members of the Board and management accept responsibility for the financial statements
which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and
prudent judgments and estimates and in conformity with the lnternational Public SectorAccounting
Standards, Section 81 of the Public Finance l\4anagemenl Acl,2012 and the State Corporations
Act, Cap 446. The members are of the opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of the financial affairs of kasneb as at 30 June 2018 and of its surplus for the year

then ended. The members and management further accept responsibility for the maintenance
of accurate and complete accounting records which have been relied upon in the preparation of
the financial statements as well as on the adequacy of the systems of internal financial controls.

Approval of the financial Statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 21 September 2018 and signed on its
behalf by:

ISAAC M. NJUGUNA
AG. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

JAMES G. NOUATI
FINANCE DIRECTOR
ICPAK Member No. 2102

kasneb

IX. STATEMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Nothing has come to the attention of the members of the Board and management to indicate that
kasneb will not remain a going concern for the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

DR. NANCY N. MURIUKI, PHD
CHAIRMAN
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR'GENERAL

REPORT OF
SECRETARIES
30 JUNE 2018

THE AUOITORGENERAL ON KENYA AC-CO-UNTANTS ANO

NATIONAL EXAMINATIONJ iOIiO FOR THE YEAR ENDED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinlon

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Accountants and

secretaries National e,"rni'iitli"'t'e""ti iGsruea) sei-out on piges 24 to 44 which

comDrise the statement " 
iliJliil' ,""iliJ^-"i "ig! 

Lrn" zora, and ttte statement of

financiar performance, .t.t".!niJi Jh-g"" in net asseG. statement of cash flows and

statement of comparison "i;il;;i "to ""a'"r 
amounts for the year then ended' and a

summary of signilicant "#ffi;;';"j91""-!"0^91t'tr 
exDlanatory information rn

accordance with the pror,.,Jil-oin'iictl zzg ot ttre constltution of Kenya and section 35

of the pubtic AuOit nct, zor if i #;;;H;;ti tne into-rrnation and explanations which

to the best of my knowledg" 
"na 

U"ti"t were necessary for the purpose of the audit'

lnmyopinion,thefinancialstatementspresentfairly'in'allmaterialrespectsthefinancial
oosition of Kenya 

^""orn,iiiJ"n-i';J"J.ri". 
Nitionai Examinations Board as at 30

June, 2018, ano its Rnanciit ff;;;;;d its cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with tnternatio'ri"rd;ffi;;r Rccountrn! standards (accrual basis) and

comPfy witn Accountants Act' 2008

Basis for oPanion

TheauditwasconductedlnaccordancewithlnternationalstandardsofSupremeAudit
lnstitutions (lSSAls) 

' 
tln'|nllp-"iJ"nior xenya Rccountants and Secretaries National

Examinations Board in ";H;#;:iii 
rlsnr 5o o" coJe of Ethics I have fulfilled other

ethical responsibilities in ."i"ro..J'*itn tne tssnr and-in accordance with other ethical

requirements applicable d;;;;i;g ;udits of financial statements in Kenva'

lbelievethattheauditevidencelhaveobtainediSsufficientandappropriatetoprovidea
basis for mY opinion'

EmPhasis of Matter

Poor financial Performance

The board continued to record a downward t.l"l-l'1 terms of financral performance a

trend which started in 
'n"?;;;;i;;;i-ioia'nos 

ln the rinancial vear 2014/2015 the

trl Ktnr.r'lLLttttnlLt trrricr \aitnal
Rcpoa ol t itlin*(iL tterul ,i th. l i dn. r,i \t,tttoint\

t Brxtrl kn' tht tut entlul Jll 'lunt )o I x

Pdr,,,tinr Aa.oYrlobililY itt '

mpowered
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Board made a surplus of Kshs.167 million. ln the financial year ended 30 June 2018 the
Board made a loss of Kshs.60 million. Though the Board's balance sheet is still solid, the
management has not disclosed any measures that they have pul in place or expected to
be implemented to reverse the loss making trend. My opinion is not modified on the above
matler.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional iudgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no Key Audit Matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, lconfirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis of Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Seclion 7 (1) (a) of the Pubtic Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, lconfirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that intemal controls, risk management and governanoe were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 1315 and ISSAI 1330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
prooesses and systems of internal control, risk management and governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

kasneb
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial staternents, management is responsible for assessing the
Board's ability to continue as a going con@rn disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainabili$ of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless the
management either intends to cease operations of the Board, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Board's financial
reporting process.

Auditor€eneral's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditois report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstalement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion.
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Report o/ the .luditor-Generul on the' Finunciul Stutements ol Kenvu .4.'counlunts un.

Eruminutions Eourd /ir the yeur enled 3l) Junt 2o I 3

I ScLrcturies .\utktnul

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

a

kasneb

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2018



REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

' obtain an understanding of internar conkor rerevant to the audit in order to designaudit procedures rhat 
".* "qii"pii"tJi"ti"'.ir"rrstances and for itl prrpo." orgiving an assurance on tne d*eciiv;;* ;;" Board,s internat controt.

'"'HlxH[:"1i*:?3:,:',T:fi 
,Eff ::,,*[:3*:1,T,1,";iTil[fi?inab,enessof

. C.onclude o.n the appropriateness of the manao(or accountins inil ol..o 
"; 

;;" ;;;' ff:}?, :fi:;:f ff :H::T"f*.ffjuncertainty exists rerated to events oi-c-oiffit lhat may cast significant croubt onthe Board's ro',,V ro^-:^?11,1y"."i.;*,ni'.in""rn or to sustain its services. tf I
concrude that a mareriar uncertainty ;;;8, i;, required to draw attention in theauditor's report to ttre retateo Ji."L"rr.l"'i. rhe.financiar statemenis- or, if suchdiscrosures are inadequate,.to modrfy-riv-Jpinion_ My concrusions aie [aseo on ttreaudit evidence obtained up to the o"ie oi ri r'ron report. Howev"r, rrtri" events or;l:X,y,[.T"y 

cause *," borro to.""-rl'to lo"nt,nr" as a going 
"on""rn 

o, to sustain

o Evaruate the overa, oresentation, srructure 
"rd.:gltgnr of. the financiar statements,incruding the discrosures,. and wheth"i 1nl''n,,"n"iar statements repiesent theunderrying transactions and events inr;r;;r that achieves fair preseniation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financiar informarion andousrness activities of the Board to 
"ipr"".i.'i!,n,on on the financiar srarements.

' Perform such other procedures as r consider necessary in the circumstances.
I communicate with the ma

ile;#:t"T;lhr:ftH'},Xs{;Tf ri*:,:f#;ffi .1ffi Hff f ;ltix,ffi ,.""t3i

I also provide management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethirequirements regarding independence, and to communicate cal
and other ma tters that may reasonably be thought to bear

with them all relationsh tps
where appli , related safeguards on my independence, and

FCPA Edward O. Ouko, CBS
A DITOR.GE NERAL

Nairobi

5 February 2019

Rept.)rt of the A rudittr -GL tht Fi
Exuminuions gqtnl lir the yur e

nrcn6 ol Kcnr.u 1c'curntuni
rulcd l0 June 2Ot 8

<returie_r.\'utionul

23

kasneb

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Financial year ended 30 June 201g



srArEMENr oF FTNANcTAL eERFoRTT:"= FoR rHE t:i;:,T"o to Ju}ffi:lrt

sh' sh'

Revenue from exchange transactions

lncome from oPerations

lncome from other sources

Total revenue

Expenses

Operating expenses

EmPloyee costs

Board exPenses

Administration costs

Repairs and maintenance

Contracted services

4

(
583,674,708

94.017,609

717.259,348

148.321,766

677,692, 317 865.581,114

)47 1 013 315,t16,283

456,099,241

21.077 ,494

24,024,2A4

1.647,616

12,129p03

31.033,687

861 ,128,508

414,620,464

4,405,065

33,172,757

1,323,036

13,001,500

Depreciation and amortisation
23.998,449

737,982,284

(60.289,967)Total exPenses 4,452,606

Surplus for the Period

The notes set out on pages 25 to 40 fOrm an integrar part of the Financiar statements

kasneb
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2018
ASSETS

Note 2017t2018

sh.Current assets

Cash and bank balances

Held to maturity investmenls

Trade and olher receivables

2016t2017

sh.

13

'14

15

312,138,486

449,128,200

63,912,861

220,906,457

782,891,450

82,754,426
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold land

lnlangible assets

Held to maturity investments

825,179 ,547 1,086,552.333
-_------------. :-

16(a)

16(c)

'18

1,303,.129,863

u7,195,120

4,328,922

176,s35,500

1,074,332.791

351,646,340

7,691.968

184,684.300

1,618,355,399

2,704,907.732.-.--.--.--.----

Total assets 1,831 1 405

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Provisions

Payments received in advance
Total liabitities

Net assets

19

20

21

120,881,375

15,171,013

1,207.993
-r-_.:--

137,260.381_______-:_
2,5r9,108.571
-----.--.-:_-

99,134.9.15

22,511 ,794

3,862.485

't 25,509.194-.--.--.--------
2,579,398.538--Revaluation reserve

Accumulated surplus
)a

441,702,02.1

23 2 077 ,406.550

441,702.021

2,137.696.s17
--r--r"'---r-- J-

2,s79,398.538

2,704,907.732

tember 201g

Totar net assets and riabirities 2,5r9,108,57i

,,656,368,r5,

The financial statements on pages 19 to 40 were iand were signed on its benait O-y: 
- 'v I v "s' s approved by the Board on 21 Sep

3[^Hif^l N. MuRruKr, PHD ISAAC M. NJUGUNA
AG. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

JAMES G. NDUATI
FINANCE DIRECTOR
ICPAK Member No.2.102

25

2,656,368.952------.-------:_
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STATEMENToFCHANGESINNETASSETSFoRTHEYEARENDED30JUNE20IE
Revaluation

reseryes

Accumulated
surPlus

sh.

2,133,243'9',11

4,452,606

2,137,696,517

(60,289,967)

2.077,406,550
--a--

Total

Balance as at 30 June 2016

Surplus/(deficit) for the Period

Balance as at 30 June 2017

SurPlus for the Period

Balance as at 30 JUNE 2018

sh.

441,702,021

sh'

2,574,945,932

4,452,606

2,579,398,s38

(60,289,967)

2.519,108'571._--

441,702,021

441,702,021

@ Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2018
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Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts

Revenue from exchange transactions
lnterest income
Revenue from non_exchange transactions

Total receipts

Payments

Operating expenses
Employee costs
Board expenses

Administration costs
Repairs and maintenance
Contracted services
(lncrease)/Decrease in trade and other receivables
lncrease/(Decrease) in payables and provisions

Total payments

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase/(sale) of financial assets
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash utilised in investing activities

Gash flows from financing activities

4

2017t2018

sh.

583,674,708

85,560,314

8,457.29s

2016t2017

sh.

717 ,259,348

143,218.162

5,103.604

5.1

677,692,317 865,581.114

6

7

8

I
10

11

(247,461,013)

(414,620,464)

(4,405,06s)

(33,172,7s7)

(1,323,036)

(13,001,500)

18,841,565

11,751.187

(315,116,283)

(456,099,241)

(21 .O77,494)
(24,O24,284)

(1 ,647,616)

(12,129,903)

39,065,716

10,892.151

(780,136,954)

(5,698.766) 85,4,t.t.150

17

16 (b)

8,148,800

(e36,300)

(244,044,955\

l,242,s31.2211...-_-_-_--_--_ a
1 ,003,797,907

761,266 ,686

(379,571,783)
-r---r---i---r- 1

25,945,300

(9,685,591)

(395,831.492)-..-..-......-. :

294,127 ,623

1,297,925,530

1,003,797.907

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivatents
Cash and cash equivalent:
cash and cash equivarej 

at beginning ofthe year
rts at the end of the year

13.2

13.2

)

Annual Report and Financial Statements or the Financial year ended 30 June 201g @
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(683,391,083)

(236,832.45st
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

orisinal Adiustments Final budset 
":#:1"T" 

':iltt#;::"
budget basis

2017t2o18 201712018 201712018 2017t2o18 201712018

sh' sh' sh' sh' sh'

INCOME FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Examinations booking fees

Registration fees

Annual registration renewal fees

Exomption fees

Sale of Publications

Sub'Total

INCOME FROM OTHER SOURCES

lnterest earned

Rental income

Miscellaneous income

Sub-total

Total income

EXPENDITURE ON OPERATIONS

Examinations and invigilation

Examination Prizes

Hire of examination halls

Data Processing

Printing and stationery

Local travel and transPort

Long distance travel and transport

Postage and telePhone

Salaries and wages

Pension and benefits

Education and training

RePairs and maintenance

Audit fees

lnsurance

Sundry expenses

Bank charges

Board exPenses

Marketing and communication

kasneb Newsline

Legal expenses

Land rent and rates

Office Provisions

Sub'total

601.600,000

159,800,000

112,800,000

73,800,000

300,000

948.300,000

(121 ,800,000)

(63,800,000)

(14,600,000)

(22,300,000)

50,000)

(222.650,000)

479.800,000

96.000,000

98,200,000

51,500,000

150,000

72s.650,000

394.313,941

78,067,411

64,991,720

46,1 33,471

168.165

583.674,708

(85,486,059)

(17,932,589)

(33,208,280)

(s,366,529)

18,165

t111.975,2921
(1

180.000,000

20,000,000

8.500.000

208,500,000

1.156,800,000

(60,000,000)

(16,500,000)

3.500,000

(73,000,000)

295, 650,000

(29,000,000)

(2,000,000)

(2,500,000)

(3,000,000)

(3,000,000)

(1,300,000)

(2,900,000)

(6,000,000)

(85,000,000)

(16,000,000)

(3,200,000)

(3,500,000)

(1 ,500,000)

2,000,000

120,000,000

3,500.000

12.000.000

135,500,000

861 .150,000

85,560,3',l4

877,516

7.579.779

94,017,609 41,482,391)

677.692,317 (1 83,457,683)

135,000,000

4,500,000

6,000,000

5,000,000

32,000,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

9,000,000

375,000,000

40,000,000

18,000,000

1,500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

10,000,000

2,000,000

23,000,000

45,000,000

12,000,000

800.000

700,000

6.000,000

736.5{t0'mo

118,725,083

3,062,070

5.484,826

5,553,818

29,881,849

4.484,842

4.342,724

8,115,358

356,610,451

40,902,932

17,107,081

1,323,036

812,000

909,833

9,666,713

1,718,628

4,405,065

38,395,959

9,561,384

il0,856
618'000

5.487,070

16,274,917

1,437,930

515,174

(553,818)

2,118,',l51

$84,u2\
157,276

8e/',u2
18,389,M9

(e02,e32)

892,919

176,9&
188,000

590,167

333,287

281.372

18,594,935

6,604,041

2,438,616

159,144

82,000

512,930

667 68.690,422

28

(34,439,686)

(2,622,484)

A.420,221)

164.000,000

6,500,000

8,500,000

8,000,000

35,000,000

5,300,000

7,400,000

15,000,000

460,000,000

56.000,000

21,200,000

5,000,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

8.000,000

2,000,000

23,000,000

65,000,000

15,000,000

1,500,000

650'000

8,000'000

9t9.050,000

(20,000,000)

(3,000,000)

(700,000)

50,000

(2.000,000)

(182.550,000)

kasneb
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
Adjustments Finalbudget

EXPENDITURE ON OTHER ITEMS
lnsurance and maintenance of officepremtses

Contracted services
Social responsibility

kasneb Foundation Bursary
Strategic planning

Research and lnnovation Centre
Library books and resource material
Examinations development and
Research

Miscellaneous expenses
Other nonrecurrenl

Sub-total

18,500,000 (10,s00,000) 8,000,000 9,066,66j (j,066,661)

Original
budget

19,800.000

3,500.000

10,000.000

1,000.000

3,500.000

4,500.000

3,000,000

2017t2018

sh.

(6,800,000)

(1,000,000)

5,000,000

1,000.000

2,000,000

500,000

3,000,000

2017t2018

sh.

'r3,000.000

2,500,000

15,000,000

2,000,000

5,500.000

5,000.000

6,000,000

Actual on
comparable

basis

201712018

sh.

13,001,500

1,949,650

220,600

1,513,220

4,378,766

4,2,t6.o04

4,1U,200

1,831,774

5,811,882

46,174.257

Performance
difference

2017t2018

sh.

(1,s00)

550.350

14,779,400

486,780

1,121,234

783,996
't,815,800

(831,774)

2,188.118

19,825.743

(1,200,000)

(2,500 ,000

1,000,000

8,000,000

66,000,000

58,650,000

33,900,000

24,750,000

995,550.000

29,250,000

132,000,000

193 50,000
71

(84,1U,870)

47,843,352

(36,291.518)
__-_-_.-_-i__l

23,998.449
r--

(60,289,967)
___-__l

0

16't,250,000 (102,600,000)

(40, 100,000)

(62,500 ,000)

(67,200,000)

(3s,400,000)

88,516.16s

(73,284,870)

21,656 ,648

94,941 s18

9,901,551

101,100.000..".-.-
60,.,50,000

(85,039.967)
-----------:--__1

kasneb
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20,t7t2018

sh.

2,200,000

10,500,000

76,500,000 ('t 0,s00,000I
-----r---r---r- l

Total expenditure
Surplus from operations
Surplus from other sources
Surplus before depreciation and
amortisation expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
expenses

Surplus for the year

802,s00,000

(10,8s0,000)

69,500,000
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NoTESToTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTSFoRTHEYEARENDED30JUNE20IS
,, 

?#'r=,tFJJ,g:"""",#i":,'STIU'rflTf 
tJ,;:'"'"ffi^lJtt*ded the setting up or

the public s""to, n"l;r;,"s ;i;;;3'o' ,a""..'d"t'P'sii-d'i 
tn" cutin"t Secretary National

rre a s u ry, s a zette d ;:;# ;"; ii e s o a rd *'"1 n\' ;;;;" y 
:"-"^ I":'l li*t# [:3:[iq

,,',##f ttili*:i*:l;*l:-xi!":1gilfi lllit1LH.';;iii;.unorn"
lnternationat puoric'SlIo-, IC'*rn,ing t"XolilJiitJiS) tot-non-commercial entities'

kasneb nas aoopteJin-e pronouncement, ,"0" or',ne tpsRS Board in preparation of its

current year financial.irt"'r""t" Tne financiai'Li#"ntt are presented in Kenya shillings'

ThefinancialStatementshavebeenpreparedonthebasisof,historicalcost,unlessstated
otherwise. rn" rtut"l.,"it'it'*rn flows is #O;,"o;"il'in" inOi..""t method' The financial

statements are prepared on accrual basis'

' ei"{ii#r:itr"T;!}trs il'1'|*}fii,:i[?3 
o'o""hed standards with errect rrom

the financtat Y

IPSAS 33: First time adoption of Accrual Basis of IPSAS

kasneb uooptlo I p lG in' the financia I y ear 2o1 4'

IPSAS 34: Consolidated Financial ?T$ff::t". not have subsidiaries' joint ventures

irris stanOaro is not applicable since K

orinvestment"inotn"'."o'npanies/institutions'

IPSAS 35: Separate Financial ?'"t:':"r15 does not have subsidiaries' joint ventures

This standard is not applicable srnce r

orinvestmentsinotn"'."o.panies/institutions.

IPSAS 36: lnvestments in Ass^ociati#$'^tjlt":Tt$;t'"" or joint ventures'

This standard is not applicable stnce t

ffS,:nj'Ti:T:il?"tf"""?'1i 'in"" 
kasneb has no joint arransements w*h other

comPanies/institutions'

'in:SJft i:' :J ::ffi l J$iJ::::J i:iH :::: ""'"' h a v e i n te re sts i n oth e r e n t i ti e s

(b) Early adoption 01,S;il"L"OLTr,r"dards 
which were adopted before the commencement

There are no new or 
'

dates

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ia) Revenue recognition
Examinationt"".l.,""o,ntedforinthefinancialyearinwhich.l:I:,:""n.examination
takes place. *o ,r,uJiJj*"Jj on .to"r"-or "*"l-.'ii"t,on 

stationery and past examination

papers. otner fees inJJ#;';;,"d f", *h:;';;;;;Lo. i*u,,ution fees refunded to

students ,no 
""no'o"I"' "'" """'"t"0 

to' in'ii"ill'' |n *ni"n the refunds are made'

@ Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018lnterest income
lnterest income is accrued using the effective-yield 

lethod rhe effective yield discountsestimated future cash receipt;ilff;;e'gxnecteo 
rire or tne rinlnciar asset to that

;:L",.';, ffi ';ilU :l YffiT,:Im{::;; I i e s t h i s v, 
" 

i i 
"''n "i..,,1 

i pa, o u ts ta n d i n s to

(b) Budget information
The annuar budget is prepared on the accruar basis, that is, alr pranned income andcosts are presented 

.in 
a'singL ;iri""rl"i o. tn" roopti", Ji',i5'"""rrrr basis for

'U1t".t',L1,#'S:ffi;l',T::ri:l*ffi:ilins 
or entitv oinerences-*rat wourd require

a separate additionar rir"n"iririut""#Jr; ;1i 
amounts and the amounts presentuJ ,"

actuar amounts. 
ii'I'u''|v'|c. r(dr's,enr rn tne statement of comparison of ouoget anJ

(c) Property, plant and equipment
A' propertv, prant and :9rip;;;i are stated 

1t 
c.gst ress accumurated depreciation andimpairment rosses. cosr rnciudes 

";o;;;;i;;;"ti. oi,.""trvlti.iiroi[. *" acquisitionof the items' when signific""i;;;;; p,"opJiv, pr"nt ,rorqripr""t lre required to be;::',ff:l,:i ':l"JTl;,*: entitv recogni-se-JIuin parts 
". i"i,,i,r'"$ets witn specinc

performed, its cost .' 
reciates them accordingly. Likewise, ;;; i'a;o,. inspection is

a rep a ce m e n, ; i * 
"-,:::r?ll,:.;r"i:H :?yJ:;.?,I: fi :il :: g;fli At :: : fr'#: i ffcosts are recognised in slrprus 

", 
o"i[r, 

".]"curred. wn"r" ,n !l"ei is acquired in a:ff;";",ril:e.rransaction ror nir or 
""ri""i"""rioeration, tnJ irJii]r,,,u,,, measured

Depreciation

2.5%
Nit
33.3%
20%
20%
25%

Depreciation is calculated on a straight_line basis tcover their estimateJus;ful lives. I write off property, plant and equipment

Non-current assets acquired during the financial

::l'"",T'3:;1,,'[:,J;il"?lr*imx*yiJ:"i",::H:F':TH::""XH'if"lllJ::;

The annual rates of depreciation in use are:Buildings
Buildings _ Construction in progress
I n f o rm a t i o n a n d co m m r r n i "ii, I X' -"^"^"" 

^ ^, ^ _
Furniture ano tittinoslm 

nication technology equipment

Machinery and offiie equipment
Motor vehicles

(d) lntangible assets
lntangibre assets acquired separatery are initiary recognised at cost. The cost ofrntangibre assets acouirlliii ,". rr'"n;*" ir"r"r::tion is their fair varue at the dateof the exchange. Foriowing initiat recogniioi]irtlngior" assets are 

"urri"o 
at cost ressany accumurated amortization and ;;;;il;i#'i'ip"i-"rt rosses. tnternairy generated

ffi iilli :: T;-,:[J ?,i :, :;** ::,mll,r * _,i".,1, ii" " 
oi' ca], t" r iz e o a n o

ffiT:"*,J[fiJ;:1. or int'nltr" #".. ,: :::ig#il #i:'"ffi#"#Xl,;:",;
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NOTES TO THE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

(e) Leasehold land
kasnebownsleaseholdlandonplotLR.20g/522tlinUpperHill.area,Nairobi,onwhich
stands its or"" or-"-#".]in" r"rr".o. tfJffii.'t"iu ilrioo of.93 years and expires in

the year 2097. i;;';o""ur"rrution ot tne rJaJeioro Lnd'is amortised over the remarnrng

i"u"L p"tioo on a straight-line basis'

(0 Financialinstruments
Financialin,t.,m"ntsarecontractsthatgiverisetobothfinancialassetsandfinancia|
liabilities.
Financial assets

*lli:n:*H:"1*r"ffi"*"lll g::^::: to both rinanciar assets and nnanciar

liabilities. The financial u.J"i, "o.pri.e 
gou"rnm"i,""'""'ilti"t in form of Treasury bills

and bonds and are h"di;;;i;;iiy.-ri,ianciat-"tt"tt within the scope of IPSAS 29:

Recognition unO fU"""url,i.,'""i?r" i"rr,O"O as nn"a"n'clf'assets "nO 
are held to maturity

and recognised in the r,#""ir' lt"t"rn"nt. ut 
"otiiufting 

cognisance of any discount or

premium on acquisition'

'flHX#::::i*:'li';:ffEi'"''ti"q-f:"^::ether 
there is objective evidence that a

financiat asset orcn "niiv 
oi[nun"]ur assets i. ;p;il R tninciat.asset or an entity

of flnancial assets is d"J;"d t" i" irprii"o ,f , ";;Hifi, 
in"i" it obiective evidence of

impairment arising tromi;";;; events tnat'ilJo3""'"0 after the. initial recognition

of the asset (an tncuneOYt".. """",;l 
,"0 tnat foss Jvl-ni n," 

'n 
impact on the estimated

future cash trows ot tneinl'niiri ,r"Lt "itn" ""'il;;;;;;clt 
assets that can be reliablv

estimated. Evidence ", 
irilffi;;i-,iuy in"rro" the fouowing indicators:

(i) The debtors or entity of debtors ?'" :il"^1'^".""ing 
significant flnancial difficulty'

iii't Oefautt or delinquericy in interest or principal payments'

iiii) rn" probabilitv tn"l;ili;;';irl ""t"in'nx"pt"v 
ot other financialreorganization'

(iv) observable data #i-cli;;;;;*:St'1"*-r" estimated ruture cash flows

(suchaschangesin"'"""oreconomic#;il;;;thatcorrelatewithdefaults)'

Financial liabilities

**jjn';;il:l ffifl f,iT:::H:l 'f_l: :: 
are crassiried as nnanciar riabirities at

fair value through surptrs"or o"ficit or loans rnJoorio*ings' as appropriate kasneb

ctetermines tne ctassinJa"t#;'il financial ririirii"t-ut i"nitial recognition currently

t"tn"U has no financial liabilities'

(s) P ro S onS eCOsn Sed n h financ d

S I 9 P o S onS p o q o n a e
acco rd ancra h P5

ct d ue to a paS e en t S
n

b n ega o I CO nS ru
tS h n a preSU n U sa o

fitS e ce po nt a
Stat men

bodv ns econU m c b n ts o I
h t n outflow of eSou rces em

d UT h amounp bab ts a a
d ab ES ma ca n b ma e

d tt e he ob sa on an a e
th sta me n o!- e equ re Se

n S p eS nted n e e

E SCS I a nI o a nv p o S o
st ted

of he ob sa on xp n
Add a d Sc oSu e Uf h md

t f v mbu rse m n on

fi nc a p rformance ne o a n
na

20to S on S ncluded n Note
p

d
at o h XpYnd u q u

A
LI he manasement S b S ES m

whP o S on S a IE m aSu e a
d ted to p IeS n a uE E

h rt nU d e and a re scou n

to tt e the ob sa on a po
h on o bE re me

ka b pects Some a pro S

ff ct ma e d he e Sne x
the e e S

bU rSed
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018for example, undSr 
1n insurance contract,. the reimbursement is recognised as aseparate asset onry when the ,"-ori."r"nt is virtuariy cl-rt","n rn" expense rerating

::#LS:H:?on 
is presenteo in tne siai"r"nt oilri*i o"nf,rance net of any

Contingent assets
kasneb does not r

wrrose exisie,;; 
';":#;::":"#,1fl:,::".,.,",:# 

::?:;:;"::l?:;g:i;:rj: lT,"Juncertain future events. not *r,orry riir.,in inl"controt ort"r.,"uininJno,", to the financialstatements contingent.as*tr 
"i. r.r""."*o *n1ir,1_rrrrto 

"r"rr"i"nr, o"veropments areappropriately reflected in tfre financiat .i"i"r"nt, ft iln"r_O".or"lrirtuatty certain thatan inflow of economic b"n"nt. oi'rJr"E'[otentiat *irr 
"^"-rr'j't-he asset,s varue can

H ffiHt""1 ffi :Tjl J :f*"J ; 1,:,k;::;;;# "" 
J;,Xll,j ff . 

". i n t n e ri n a n cil i

Contingent liabilities
kasneb does not recoonir
,ntn"noi".io;;"ffi ffi U,:l[r"T:IXTXI,,l:,ff :Iff ;:r.;]:,f ;ffi i:rJ:i1.,;S"T,.:::;mH: J::[?] 1,""" 1: : f :;y,9**; ii"'' i""'otJ ;;;#:"# o n N ote 26,
commitments in tne ruturi.malor 

capitat commitments tnat wouio;;ffi;g" cash flow

(h) Changes in accounting policies and estimateskasneb recognises thee?ectr 
"r"n""J"#r"::::],1, poricy retrospectrvery. The effects

ffi|,Tffii 
in accounting poricv a'e ffii"o'irorp""tirery if retrospective appricarion is

(i) Employee retirement benefits
kasneb operates a staff retirement benefit.wtrich was 

"rt"orirn"o on 1 January 1g'ot^t^"L:-l: 
for its employees. The scheme,

i!i:+x[:,T:[i"ffi*ii#m"::xlTJ".ff :il3T:",::.'l;if*im:
kasneb a s tn e spo nso, il; .;il#;: JI"T#:i::,,,[i :Tf;i: ln:n: :*:; : l:a defined contribution scheme *i*, 

"n""it m 1 Jury 2011 incomoriacircular No. 18/2010 
"ro 

t" n"ii"i,|u"n]r,e""n"rit. n"t nce with rreasury

kasneb has no legal or constructive obligation to pay-further contributions to the definedcontribution scheme if 
.the fund oo"" iJi'ioro ,rm"i"ri-"rr"t.'il,,ou, a, emproyee

,i"ir"f." 

"",,'#;:* 

;i; : 
,,;:Xi:'i 

L ili*rt.., " 
Jp,.i",. p 

",.Li!',n " 
co n tri o u, o n i

the year in irni"n inuv become payable. 
ent benefits are charged against in"or" in

kasneb and all its elPloyees also contribute to. a statutory defined contribution scheme,
lffi IT "#:,; 1":1, ffii{'y. : l* jl;,t r' *, " "o 

*,., oil;, 
";"1 

;te rm i n ed by t h e

0) Related parties and transactions
The senior manaseTllj team is iegarded as- related parties and comprise the chiefExecutive officer, Directors 

"no 
sl"rio,. ,#rg"rr. The totar i"rri"rution of seniormanagement team for the financia.y";; 

";;; June 2018 were as foltows:

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Financial year ended 30 June 201g @
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Number of senior management staff 13

rJui ,",'n"'ation (Sh'i ..--^^x,,1:r'J.;:"3t re financial vear ended 30 June

There were no other related party transat

2018.

,o *XH'"J"t:t-:fli:'ffi:t,t, "roo*," 
to financial risk bv,investins onlv in secure

government *Jril';ii;;nJ oono, in"t"'"1" * Rnancnt liabilities like loans and

overdrafts other than suppliers' liabilities'

(i) CurrencY risk
kasneb bank accounts are denomingt!!'il K"ny'n shilling as shown in note 13'1'

except for r"nv" cl,","",Ii"ia""r txca) D"l;;A;;nt *-ni"n is domiciled at KCB'

capital Hitt arancn]in"om" uno expenses "i""""ttr"o 
in Kenya shilling hence there

is minimal or no exposure to currency risk'

(ii) lnterestt".t":'^:l 
,rir"s from possible impact of changes in interest rates on the

lnterest rate rlsK €

value of financiat ffiil;i;:ttinr"rtinJ"o.irv in fo"u"tnt"nt treasury bills and

bonds, kasneu nrr'.i"irlt'e*polure to interest rate risk'

(iii) Credit risk
Creditriskistherrskthatapartytofinancialinstrumenttransactionwillfailtodischarge
an oblisation '"d;;; 

d; oiner partv t" iil;';;i;;n"iut tott x"tneb is exposed

to minimal creOit risf on the debtor """oun,]ini't'tft 
I tinitised since students'

fees are paid in ;li'X;"' M;'tgug" "no ""t 
i"""t-"0'anced to members of staff

are fullv secured ;;"fi;;;;-i dnrv ''niil"i 
cieJit taclritie:-u'l:j'"nt"o mainlv to

customersadvertisinginkasnebNewslineandbulkshortservicemessage(SMS)
service Providers'

(l) Cash and :1:I tYl'"*iit"o.prtr" cash on hand and cash at bank and highlv liquid

Cash and cash equl\

investments,n rr"rJJ,i'iurJ-*ri"ti "r" 
r"uoirv'"on*rtible to known.amounts of cash

and are subject ro ,n.ln'n,iou"ni'il.[ oi"nrng".'i" "r'L". 
eank account balances include

amounts at various #;#i;i;unr. ", 
tn" 

""0 
of the financial year- For the purposes

of these financial tt'i#i""l"l'n uno *tn""i']'ur"nit urto 
'i:1"* 

short term cash

imorests ,no uournll"'; ;;;;;;tof staff *liJ'*"t" not surrendered or accounted

io, ut tn" end of the financial Year'

(m) ComParative figures
where necessary tiJ preulous financial year comparative figures have been adjusted/

reco nfl g u red to 
"ontJ"Yt 

io'i.'l'"q' i t"o 
"-h 

u n g"t i n presentation'

'"'fl ,'#:"iT:l[::ffi :i::lj"i#l{i':i:"":i:S?:''HJl!iH$L"o'i*smanasemen'i
to make judgmentsl"tii'ut"' 'n0.13;"oiiont 

lnit 'tt""t 
the'reported amounts of

revenues, "*p"nr*, 
assets and.liaUifities,ini in"'"Oit"iot"" of contingent liabilities'

at the end of the reforting period. no*"r"rlrilliainfi aoout these assumptions and

estimates 
"ouro 

r"Ju-nin"olt"or", tn"t t"quii" " 
matlnat ad.lustment to the carryrng

amount ot tne asseili ii'uiritv affected in future periods'
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
_Estimates a nd ass umptions
The kev assumption-s'"on;rning ,n" tllr"^"ld other key sources of estimationuncertainty at the reporting date] tnri r,are a significant ,.iJt li ."r"ing a materiaradjustment to the,carrying 

"rornt; oi 
"rs"t" "ni ri"oiiiti""'*,i.,,n the next financialIill;?i: i?"T,?;. 

berow.lasneu oaJeo its as.,rpti"^ 
"rJ 

#,,irr"" on parameters

:ffi [::#ffi:;:-#,ni!:ffi :i,'if l3,:]Jl?,H3*sr:mu:1ffi tr;
renecied," d; ; J;|ilffi ,T;#,fry:::rn" "",tl"i' ";'i#H: s.;"n 

"n",g".',,""
Useful lives and residual values

,lHffi [",:;lfl fi :ff :;jj:,"""J:::""f ;&:::?ssedusinsthero,,owinsindicators

lli Iffi ;:ij[T ?l te asset based on the assessment or experts emproyed by kasneb
and 0ro"".""".'" 

asset' its susceptibility ano 
"oapiaoinil;;"rin", in technorogy

(iii) The nature of th
r i, i n,, i r, oi r ii; ;,; 

"",,ffi 
:: ;?il:"li!": ili..,"'u' 

i s deproyed
(v) Changes in the market i" rlrrrti"" i" In"I."",.

(o) Subsequent events

IH::iil?#3;iJ,:?'il,: ,"g;:",::?'!;::f:!%1';.. with a sisnificant impacr on the

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Examination booking fees
Registration fees

Annual registration renewal fees
Exemption fees

Sale of publications

INCOME FROi,f OTHER SOURCES
Rental income

lnterest income

Miscellaneous income

5

2017t2018

sh.

394,31 3,941

78.067,411

64,991,720

46,133.471

'168,165

s83,674,708

877,5.t6

85,s60,314

7,579.779

94,017.609

2016t2017

sh.

472.586,14,1

105,005.393

90,337.142

49,026,7.12

303,960

717,259,348

556.27s

143.218.162

4,547.329

148,321,766

91,283,414

43.423,232

4,096,504

3,284,51s

1,130,497

143,218,162

5.'t INTEREST INCOME

lnterest income comprises the following:
lnterest received flom government securities
Accrued interest from government

rnterest received fror ronnrn" o"lo""L'ities/mortgage
lnterest earned from bank balances
lnterest earned from advances to staff

54,'177.4M

20,990,394

6,929.782

2,856,388

606.286

85,560,314

)
kasneb
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2017120'la

sh.

140,a83,272

6,766,691

6,035,940

6,269,695

32,839,783

5,453,364

3,177 ,947

11,069,440

812,000

2,422,787

9,455,289

2,784.277

59,092,305

20,723,238

24,400

6'18,030

6.687,825

3'15,116'283

Note

6 OPERATING EXPENSES

Examinations and invigilation

Examination Prizes

Hire of examination halls

Data Processing

Printing and stationery

Local favel and transport

Long distance travel and transport

Postage and telePhone

Audit fees

lnsurance

Sundry exPenses

Bank charges

Marketing and communication

kasneb Newsline

Legal exPenses

Land rent and rates

Office Provisions

6.1 SUNORY EXPENSES

End of year and annual anniversary expenses

Staff uniforms, floral and laundry expenses

Other exPenses

6.2

EMPLOYEE COSTS

Salaries and wages

Contributions to Pension

Contributions to medical aid and benefits

Casual labour

Leave allowances

Commuter allowances

Education and training

Housing benelits and allowances

Ovedime PaYments

Entertainment allowance

Examinations securitY allowance

Extraneous allowances

TolePhone allowances

Performance reward and other bonuses

LEGAL EXPENSET ., madeto firms of advocates hired by kasneb as:

ff;1,:xffiH"ifili:",3?:JI:ffi tnJll""" ,*o to kasneb 
-- .. ho was dismissed rrom service

iii ffi;no,i;;;'uii cuset ietating to a supplier and an emplovee w

118.725.083

3.062,070

5.484,826

5,553,818

29,881,849

4.484,842

4342,724

8,1'l 5,358

812,000

909.833

9.666,713

1.718,628

38.395,959

9,56',1 ,384

640,856

618,000

5.487,070

217,161,013

--

6.1

6_Z

5.817,418

1,318,547

2.530,748

9,666,713

7 1 81 ,564,1M

40.902,932

26.791 .352

3,629.027

5,319,432

19.296,694

17,107,081

47,360,904

16.392,86',1

3,247.419

38,483,226

1.710,000

1,849,355

10,966,077

111,6?0,&

181.8',l5,915

41 ,594,7',13

30.321,563

3,762,500

5304.482

20.07'l,468

26,632,018

49,208,678

26,090,616

3,28?,097

40,323,548

1,800,000

1,667,903

24,223,7 40

456,099,241

mpowe{eo
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2016120'17

sh.

3,997 ,324

2,289,151

3.168,815

9,455,289

kasneb



Note 2017t2018

sh.
2016t2017

sh.

3,704.000

701.065

4,405.06s 21,077,494
9 AOMINISTRATION COSTS

lnsurance and maintenance of office premises
Social responsibility

kasneb Foundation _ Busary
Strategic planning

Website development and maintenance
Research and lnnovation Centre
Examinations development and Research
Miscellaneous expenses

Other nonrecurrent expenses

9,066.661

'1,949,650

220.600

1 ,513.220

4,378,766

4,216.0u

4,1U.200

1,831.774

5,811,882

33,172,757

6,473.315

3,570.492

2,924,771

2,978.276

540.237

-19.977

7 ,517 .216

24,024.284
9.1 SOCIALRESPONSIBILIry

Donations to llbraries (KNLS)
Donations lo olher instilutions
School fees to needy students

1,362,283

232,700

354,667

1,949.650 3,570,492
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

Machinery and office equipment
Motor vehicles

ICT equipment

Building repairs

1,171.766 1,328,31'l

26,850

23,381

269.074

1,647,6.t 6

39,040

112.230

1,323,036

11 CONTRACTEO SERVICES

Building management and maintenance
Security services

Lifl service and maintenance

Garbage collection services
Sanitary services

Car park

Generator services

Provision of bot ed water

6,636,480

3,990,221

111,708

153,120

362,724

1,074,781

3,604,368

5.779,93s

354,046

152,460

361 ,165

1 ,284,772

120,000

473.158

12,129,903
12 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Deprecialion- property. plant and equipment
Amortisation- Leasehold land
Amortisation- lntangible assets

672.466

13,001.500

16 (a)

16 (c)

17

15,247,883

4,451 ,220

4,299.346

23,998.449

21,782,597

4,451,220

4,799.870

31,033.687

)
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BOARD EXPENSES

Chairman,s honoraria

Board and committees atendance allowances
Board and committees workshops expenses

960.000

6,540,930

13,576.564

9.1

2,O49,172

947,380

573,940

't0
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20'1712014

sh.

139,758,550

448.913

17',1 .931 ,023

312,138,/186

s4.914 ,282

990.934

165,001,24'1

220,906,/t57

'13

Note

13.1

,I3.'I BANK BALANCES

National Bank of Kenya Ltd - Main account

National Bank of Kenya Ltd' - Fee collection account

Barclays Bank of Kenya Ltd'

Equity Bank Ltd'

Cooperative Bank of KenYa Ltd'

Kenya Post Office Savings Bank (Postbank)

Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd'- Dollar Account

Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd'- Ksh' Account

UBA Kenya Bank'ltd

13.2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and bank balances

Treasury Bills and Bonds maturing within one year

14 TREASURY BILLS/BONDS MATURING WITHIN ONE YEAR

Treasury Bills maturing within one year

Treasury Bonds maturing within one year

15

PrepaYments

lnterest receivable

Posta Corporation of Kenya (Postapay receipts)

Web Tribe Ltd. (JamboPay receipts)

Other receivables

Staff receivables

16 (a) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (NET BOOK VALUES)

Building

Building work in Progress

lnformation communication technology equipment

Furniture and fittings

Machinery and office equipment

Motor v€hicles

140,569,783

'1.141 ,781,587

4 298,993

11.703,720

1.749,267

3.026,513

1,303,'.|29'863
---

25,276,608

26.538,660

40,651,966

3,003,050

3,538,182

6.471.776

31,750,197

2.516,048

12,063

139.758,550

312,138.486

449j28,200

761,266,366

443.632,400

s,495,800

449,128,200

54.914,282

220.906.457

782.891,450

1.003,797,907.-:--

763.529.950

19,361 .500

782,891,450

43,4?3,232

16,287,775

321,690

2,007,749

20,713,980

82,754,426

144.473,696

908.937,700

3.579.911

9.244.291

3,061,007

5.036,186

1,074,332,791

mpowereo
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201612017

sh.

CASH AND EANK BALANCES

Bank balances

Cash-on-hand and in transit

Mortgage dePosit

2,644,214

20.990,394

18,520,305

1,',135,9',16

2.342.359

18,279.673

63,912,861

149,812

12,884.252

757,819

9,883,455

15,884,638

1,835,373

1 3,319,931

196,',l89

2,81 3

RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

kasneb
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

16(b)
T

PROPERTY PLANTAND EQUIPMENT - 201712018

Building
lntodnation

Colnmunicetion
Technotogy
Equipm€nt

sh.

65,915,143

Fu rnitu re
and Fittings

Machinery
and Otfice

EquipmentCOST/ VALUATION

At 1 Juty 2017

Additions

Disposals

At 30 June 2OlB

Motor
Vehicles Total

sh.
'156,156,522 sh.

48,021,835

7,433.974

sh.

29,020,375
sh.

31,585,278
sh.

'1,239,636,8s3

244.044,955

1,141,781.587
..-..r..rr.-....

3,767,094

(122,600) (65. B3 7)

55,389.97269,559.637
(2,045,000)

29,5{,0,278

(2.233.437 
)

1 ,481,148.371:-----.-..--:_-
29,020.375

DEPRECIATION

At 't Juty 2017

Charge for the year

Eliminated on disposal

Revaluation

At 30 June 2018

NET BOOK VALUE

At 30 JUNE 2018

62,33s,232

3,048,O12

(122,600)

38,777 ,544

4.97 4.545

(65,837)

26.549,092

2,009,673

(2,045,000)

'165,304,062

'15.247,883

(2.233,437)
't5,586,739 .--.-.-- 6s,260,644 43,686.252 27,271,108

.---
178,318,508
!---

-:----

26,5.' 3,765

:'---'t40,569.783 1tlug1fgz 4,298.993 11,703.720 1,749,267 3,026.513 !03,!gd€

PROPERTY PLANTAND EQUIPMENT - 2016/2017

Building
Building
Construction
ln-progress

tnrormrtion
Communication

Techhotogy
Equiptnent

sh.

58,745,882

7,'t69.261

Machinery
and Office

Equipment

sh.

29.020,375

COST/VALUATION

At 1 Juty 2016

Additions

Disposals

At 30 JUNE 2018

Motor
Vehicles Total

sh.

156,156,522
Sh,

524.370.484

384,567,216

sh.

43.926,820

4,095,0.15

sh.

31.585,278
Sh

843,805,361

395,831,492

€E]lqEze .sgpgz-?oq !,re1.5.1gt 4e.e4g3o ,*r*r" 315g5JZ! 1a€.016.9!3
DEPRECIATION

At 1 Juty 2016

Charge for the year

Disposals

At 30 JUNE 2018

7,778,913

3,903,913
55,848. .164

6,487,068
24,304,195

1,655,173

20,917,034

s,632,058

143,521,465

21,782,597

4ggz.€& urJ_rgarr- i!.rrEg- * 3oerpg? l!g.ag1,qoz
NET BOOK VALUE

At 30 JUNE 20,'8 &4423€90 eogpEz.?oo 3.r9.91r-- 124429r_- 3.g_01@. l,q6J_A€ Lq4er,r.---.-

kasneb

11,682,826

3,903,9.13

Building
Construction
ln-progross

sh.

908,937,700

232,843.887

',56,156.522

25,959,368

1,311.740

Furniture
and Fittings

34,673,159

4,104,385
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Note 2O17:2O1A 20'1612017

sh. sh'

16 (c)

17

1rl

19

20

LEASEHOLD LAND

Cosuvaluation

As at 30 June

AMORTISATION

Balance bif

Amortisation charge lor the Year

As at 30 June

Net book value asat 30 June

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

CosVvaluation

Balance brought forward as at 1 July

Additions - internal developmenls

As at 30 June

Amortization and imPiirment

At 1 JulY

Amortisation

As at 30 June

Net book value as at 30 June

365,000,000

365.000.000

13.353,660

4 451 .220

17.804,880

33,301,437

936.300

36s,000.000

365,000.000

8.902,440

4 451.220

13,353,660

347.195,120 351,646,340

23,615,846

I 7',l1 .',100

7 ,97 4,491

33.301,437

20,809,599

4.799,870

25,609,469

7,691,968

25.609,469

4.299,346

29,908,815

4,328,527 t

-ruffi1${[:fll+rrr*,l,;;:r:f ffi:"': 
n:Inl:x'T ixrv' 

t]::*'**':l' 
irj'r["j'"t:

Treastlly bonds maturins after one vear 
gg'E$99 19$9!!99

&
TRADE AND orHER PAYABLES 14,682,780 #lta,'*
Examinations and invigilation expenses 106,198,595 94,356,1D

Accruals , qplfll es,134'e1s

registered
Land and

Motor veh

PAYMENTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

PrePaid examination fees

REVALUATION RESERVES

The revaluation reserve arose from a revaluation of land

firms of valuers:

buildings- NW Realite 
..

[i"]-'i*oroo,'" Association (AA) of Kenya

441,702,02'l

building and motor vehicles bY the

1.207,993 3.862,485

441.702,021
-.--

following

7,406,663

(611,22O)

6.795,443

4,588,918

2.412,200

1.374.452

]E!!q!.

8.143 ,462

(736,799)

7,406.663

3.107,571

1.197 ,120

4.723,500

6.076,940

22$1J3L

21

?2

he Financial Year ended 30 June 2018
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PROVISIONS

Leave daYS: brought iorward

lncrease/(Decrease) in provision:

Leave

GratuitY

Other non recurrent exPenses

Examination Prizes

Students Newsline

Carried foruvard

34,237,737



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2017t2018

sh.23 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
Balance as at 1 July
Surplus

2016t2017

sh.

2,137,696,517 2,133,243.911

4,452.606--
2,137,696,517
.--..r..r-

(60,289,967)--.-.--:

24

2,077,406,550
!--..-..--

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO CASH
GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus for the year
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation

(60,289,967) 4,452.606

23,998,449 31,033,687

Working capital adjustments:
lncrease in receivables

lncrease in payables, provisions and prepayment" ]8,841,565 39,065,7.16
Net cash flow from operating activities ' '11,751,187 

10,g92,151

25 MAJOR CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
(5'698'766) 

!11!60-
kasneb has entered rnto contractult ootigations wtrich wiil entair major capitar commitmentsfor the next two and a-farf years. il;;,il:"mmitments ,erate to ill extension of kasnebTowers rand consrruction irkasnel-il*Jr.", ,n" or"j;;;;";"rr"l,o,rrro. enhancins
the security and efficiency in tne aomirii"tr"i,"" of the examin",iIrr. i"" main contractorsare Dinesh Construction 

,Llniteo ilil ffiilect architects are Jomocollege of Agriculture ana recrrnoioJ, rr^rfiir Enrerprises Ltd. x"nvrtt"-Unii-r"]ii

The total project costs are as follows:

Construction works sh.
1,074,883,805

124,686,522
1,Gss-7oJr7

;j:f" 
desisn and consuttancy services (ptus 16% VAT)

As at 30 June 201g
consultancy services
project.

a tgflr or sh.1,141.t81sr *o o""nlIffiiried works andwhich is equivatent ro 96% "i;; i5#,J"i,r",uo cost of rhe

The procurement methofollows: _ _d used to identify the prqect architects and contractors were as

a JK UAT Enterpr ses Ltd
ThE pro CU r men U

,f JK UAT E
rd

n te p SES L td aS h prol ctacco a nce th the p ro e manao rS aS u nd rtakS onS of Sect on 4 2 f h
en nct z005 s n h JKU

c o e Pub c Pro u m da AT En te pnSUS Ltd bs
e tl a n D SpoSaS a Su d ry ot a Go rn men en ty

b D neS h construct o Ltdn
The procu r m n of D h CneS onStruct on L d haS S sned n D

aS roush ope tl tend Thecembe r 2t, 1 J and he tr
er E n ac

Sa me dav Th
on acto rS o k p SSeS t the CO nS ruc on work5

S on o S te on he
bU

co menced U n b Feb ru Z0 4comp e d bv June z0 9
a ry a nd a re Xpe

m
cted o
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26 MORTGAGE DEPOSIT

kasneb operates u siutr rortguge scheme. The staff mortgage scheme is administered by

Kenya Comm","i"r ill.,k'r-il.'ilrorring fun;'lr;;i"i"in"-o 
"*itn x"nva Commercial Bank

Ltd. for the purpose;iui"*;n;ort9a-09 '#: 
ffi;l"it ot staff An interest rare of 4o/o

per annum on '"ou#Ji"i;;;i;;it 
"cnargeo on the mortsage loans'

27 TAXATION
Theincomeofkasnebisexemptfromincometaxbyvirtueoflega|noticeNo.116/1975.

28 EXPLANATORY NOTES oN VATIICES lN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR

lfi 

-i,c 
-: 

J5|H[',":P":: 
j I i5# 13,, 

" 
n 

"". 
i n th e n n a n ci a r state m e nts :

28.1 INCOME
The reported totat income of sh.67.7. million for the year^ended-3! June 20'18 was lower

than the uuogeteo in'c-;r" "t 
sn.aor 1 *ll;;';;ln iiea milli-on representing a negative

variance of 21.3o/o.ii'J'i"i,"*,"n i-s a brief ,lr,vJ,t "r 
tn" various maior sources of income'

(a) Examination bookino fees

The reported ,"""il"'"i;;394.3 millionwas lower than the-budgeted income of Sh'479'8

million bv sn as's m]rrion representins ' dil;;;;i;;; "f 
fl a'/"'This is attributable to:

(i)Theimpactottransitiontotherevised.examinationssyllabuseswhichwereimplemented
effective rrom i lury 2015 including J;:il;Jiio'ioir""nni"ian examinations students

to DiPloma examinations'

(ii)TheintroductionoftheDiplomaexaminationseffectivefromlJulv20l5whoseminimum
entyeq''r"'i"nt*utrbsemean'g;i;;6-icminus)comparedtoD+(Dplus)for
inu 6n"Lo out Technician examinations'

(iii)Competitionfromuniversitieswhoalsooffereddiplomacoy.rsestostudentswithKCSE
meangrade#B:ii;i;;r]*nor"u.""qr"ntrvpiogr"rredtodegreecourses'

(iv)ReformsintheEducationsectorwhereallthestudentsWhosattheKCsEexamination
in 2016 anO"iOlland obtained C* iC pf"l and above were offered admission to the

universities through KUCCPS irnr"otlt5iv u'#tn"-xcsr results were released'

(b) Registration fees

ThereportedincomeofSh.TS.,lmillionwaslowerthanthebudgetedincomeofSh.g6million
by Sh r7.e mirrion r"J,e-s"nt'ns u n"g'ti'"ftfiffr::,:t",t""i=JffiJ: attributabre to rower

il,io", "i"t'dents 
who registered comparec

(c) Annual registration renewal fees

The reported in"o.J ;H.; .n'iffLn *u" lower than the budgeted in-come of Sh'98'2 million

bv Sh.33.2 mirrion ,epi"Jeniing , n"guti,".,ul,""l o} ae avo. The variance iS attributable to

Ilr" tr"t"it attectlng items 1'1 and 1 2 above'

(d) ExemPtion fees 
z ^r- ,a < miri^n was maroinally lower than the budgeted income of

' ili;*"*S;U ;l;1 fi il [l[1":,fiJ';1:n"' J; ;; r-i a nce or 1 o 4'/.

@ Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(e) lnterest earned

The reported income of Sh.g5.6 million ,

#,":Hft1:J :lll ;;'x;i' n":"ffi:,[]i:..":ilJi? N;1el* 
i n co me of S h 1 20

tne srrortrair in-;jJ;ff:,.#oitts anioono'-*r.,i.n 
',"1"1";,fiji;#:,:'.T':i:X'fi :?

(f) Rental income
The reported incor
ov sn z o'mirr;;;";"" 

of Sh 0'e million was ,:-y:j_!"lln" budseted income or Sh.3.5 mirionprorected 

',",l""ilfiil1i3r:ff:?i:H:lT"T""jl.Ji:;.1[:j$::i,,I,j:'ii#[::
28.2 EXPENDITURE

The total expenditure before depreciation of

illffi $ilffi 'ir1;,"")::,.#ff*ff 11"**:n:{iiriit:!:i:r:"a:i
(a) Examinations and invigilation

The reported expenditur-e oi in.rrA.z ,irtiosh.135millionbySh.1u.sr;,,;'"'r"r?u'.J'r','loJ-*"t.lower than the budgeted expenditure oft" ."rrgr ;"",uii'lll t million representing a positiv" ,"ri"r""'oi .i"z] 
1 %. This is attributabre

^, -!*:lfi"T:-[UJl 
checkins costs due to rower candidature in the examinations,", 

""J;fl:?J,,"J,"ff:":,:l;il:,f;:: 
examination question papers which are pegged to

ll ] H,.,?[: 
of centres n"n"" 

'"oiJon in costs rerating to invisiration and hire of examination(iv) Utirisation of kasneb towers , for marking of the May 201g examinations.
(b) Examination prizes

The. reported expenditure of Sh.3..l million v
:n_o 

a. million by sh.r a mirrion re[r;r#il Jll '9.*"t 
than the budgeted expenditure ofto cost savings foruse or tasnJ;;#'Y,iTsitive variance ot 31i". rn,r-i"?iroriroi'"

hiring hotel conference facilities. Jurlng the prize giving ceremony rather than

(c) Postage and telephone
r ne reported exoenditure of Sh.8.1 million was row-er-tlan 

lh.e- 
gudseted expenditure of sh.g

mi'ion by sh 0 9 million ,epresenting a ;;#; variance 
"r 

r07.1'ni" *as attributabre to:

::i i:{i!qtr i;Ylplifi:":';T:ifi#iffi; 
,,1,1 

,he authority to sit examinations(ri) Access and downloadirg of roirl'u;oi;fl
enhanced kasneb website and e_kasneb 

rmation by students and candidates from the

(d) Staff emoluments

Savings due to freeze orstructJre;;;;ri;fi; un recruitment and need to further rationalise the organisation

11"';fffi:'";;31'l.;T;i:"1:"',1:.gffiJ;.1i,y"1"'x:rJ:,?:s"i:';r"":x,?,ilH",rJ

(i)

kasneb
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(ii) starr *'?:P:.1HJ;q"H liX'io ,n"'""'ed automation or processes'

(iii) Savings on over

(e) Board "'?"1t"'--.diture of Sh.4.4 million was lower than the budoeted expenditure of

The rePorted exPer

Sh.23 million uv sn.r"#irir-rioi represen,'"gI p"t,o,"'u"'Ln"" 9t91"; 
This is attributable

i",*,"n"^il"l#}Ij"ii:H*:ffi :1t",[JJi*H.;]u]:t1T',H"ff'TiL1
had not been aPPotl

was awaiting approval from the National Treasury'

(f) Marketins "r:-"^Til,:["3lt3l.u.o million was lower than the budseted expenditure of

The reported expe

Sh 45 million ov sn I'o *irri"rliepresenting a positive variance of 15'/o'

This is attribut"o'" il'J"i"nt iiorn tn" budgeted expenditure on:

(i) Savings on promotional materials'

(ii) Participation ,"';:;;;;i;; in ,""onout-y schools and international trade fairs in Uganda

and EthioPra which were deferred'

G) +t'"','eil"*""-:;rlilur,#+lflli**r 
idk"'"::,gh:H.,uT#i':i::l

"*i"n.L'.,"rul:J:fi:$:ilT$Iffffi 1 6 above
due to unoccuPtet

(h) kasneb F31',1ffi;,?rltl?tn 0., miilion was rower than the-hrrdoeted expenditure of

The reported exl

:r;:*n::,',irlil[tr!U3iitr*i[}}:.di,#:"jr:n]I:x;:i;:1:r:
commencement of disbursement of bursa

(i) Examination: ?::"..r',ii,I:i3;X1rTffiT*s rower than the budgeted exPenditure of Sh'6

The reported expeno

tlh?f :J*:*l#fl ;il.f{#i*ii;i}ff 
'";,',i;;*"IH:n-'#$::'""#:rurn:

(CAMS) which was <

(i) Other non-recurrent expenses

rhe reported ",0"";i;iJ;i'dils 
a ''rrio1YfiJ:-""i,U::JTtliqlTf'li::1lil:iiiii

nijruii::rt',ll lgtl'"JJ";;sllI'{i}iJn s""u'itv Manasement svstem expenses

which were oetenei io"in" nnun"i'l year 201812019'

,, 
_arr"1[:]r".,"tistatements are presented in Kenva shiunss (Sh.)

kasneb
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Accounting Technicians Diploma (ATD)

The Accounting Technicians Diploma qualification equips

candidates with skills and competencies to work as middle

level accountants providing technical support in accounting,

auditing and taxation in both the public and private sectors.

Diploma in lnformation Communication Technology (DICT)

The Diploma in Information Communication Technology

graduates possess the technical know-how and skills

necessary to work in the dynamic ICT industry as technicians

in systems development, systems programming, internet and

networking, administration and maintenance.

Diploma in Credit Management (DCM)

The Diploma in Credit Management graduates are competent

and skilled to work as middle level credit managers and credit

controllers in both financial and non-financial enterprises.

Y.
^n(^.-

-

(

,(

(

I T

-)

a.

^4.--.1'('
1r.

\l

..)

t\ Certificate in Accounting and Management Skills (CAMS)

examination

The Certificate in Accounting and Management Skills (CAMS)

is aimed at equipping candidates with fundamental accounting

and management skills to provide essential services to small

and medium size enterprises (SMEs), non-governmental

organisations (NGOs), corporate and the public sector.

(

Mission
Empowering professionals globally by offering quality examinations and

undertaking research and innovation.

Gore values
lntegrity

Professionalism

Customer focus

Teamwork

lnnovativeness

a
^

N

DI PLOMA QUALI FICATIONS

C ERTIFICATE QUALIFICATION

CAMS

Ir

)

DCM



i'rrt

iljt-alt
Watrr11rlllllf

L^L.

'llD- >--

/

\\\\

\\\N
!6 r':--:-:-U \\\\\\uu\\Lf\uf,r

tr\ L\
F'r

F-

G

-l

rrEt

f E

b=mpowered

w
----

li

"l
\

Ll' \

I

r
/ /, ,

,l .,

E L-i

t

i-rl

It

L rrI l_l L

lit

I r'I I
,t

I,

r

Ii
I L

r,

,i/t, ilg

o

q..

:\-/

\\
\

I

E

EiIEsHEEigs6.6.dd.,,E 

*

o
=oO
=(D
(D
O-

ill


